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STONEGATE FARMERS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

The director presents the strategic report for the year ended 30 September 2023,
Principal activity

The principal activity of the company is the packing and marketing of free range & organic eggs and egg
products. The company contracts with a substantial number of Group and independent farmers to collect and
process eggs produced on their farms. The egg is processed and packed by the company and supplied to
retail and trade customers.

Review of the business

The company experienced turnover grawth of 26% in the period to £151.0m (2022: £120.2m). Operating profit
was £2.6m (2022: £0.8m), profitability improved as commadity inflation pressures eased combined with lower
avaiiability of eggs in the UK. The director cansiders the company to be in a strong financial position given net
assets of £15.8m as of 30 September 2023 (2022: £15.1m}.

The company will continue to strengthen the business through the development and evolution of high-quality
core products focused on our customers' needs. investment will continue in equipment and technology at the
primary packing site.

During the year, the campany has continued to invest in its grading capabilities. The company has also
continued to invest in its new egg processing facility to provide customers and consumers with a wider range
of products to meet their requirements.

The company continues to support and invest in its supply chain focusing on providing a competitive,
sustainable model for the long term. Within the competitive markeiplace in which we operate, we face the
constant challenge of being both adaptive and reactive to market price changes such as feed prices.

Throughout the year, the company has continued to invest in staff at all levels, which we believe to be
important, not least for the productivity gains that resulf.




STONEGATE FARMERS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

Principal risks and uncertainties

We have a long and strong relationship with our customers, working together to ensure the end consumer
demands, both naw and in the future, can be met and often exceeded. We continue to monitor market trends
across egg types and sizes to ensure we have the right mix to meet customer demand.

Raw Material & Commodity Risk

The volatility of commodity prices, particularly wheat, is a constant challenge for the company. In addition to
reviewing the market trends we work with both our suppliers and customers to minimise the impact to any one

party.
Supply Risk

The risk to supply of egg has continued in the year with the impact of the Russia-Ukraine war on costs, and
the increasing impact of Avian Influenza on the UK laying flock. Producers have felt cost increases in all
aspects of their business, encompassing feed, energy, labour, transportation and in respect of new investment
cost of materials and cost to raise finance, Thase have all compounded to impact the willingness of producers
ta invest in new infrastructure to house new free range or organic flocks, and with the impending move away
from caged egg by retailers this is putting pressure on the supply of egg.

The company works closely with its producer base and is proactive in passing through price increases in
partnership with our strategic refailers to ensure our supply base has a viable business to continue as long-
term partners to us and our retailers.

The company holds our own farms and those of our producers to the highest standards of biosecurity to
mitigate the risk of Avian Influenza., The company has insurance in place specifically against the risk of our
own farms being directly impacted by Avian Influenza.

Health & Safety Risk

Employee safety remains paramount in our day-io-day activilies. The company ensures that regular, thorough
reviews of the workplace are carried out with any relevant actions taken to provide a safe working
environment for all our employees. In addition to our own reviews the company engages with third parties to
provide an independent review.,

Cash Flow Risk

The company has in place a risk management programme that seeks lo limit the adverse effects on the
financial performance of the company by monitoring levels of debt finance and related finance costs. The
company does not use derivative financial instruments to manage interest rate costs and as such, no hedge
accounting is applied.

Given the size of the company, the director has not delegated the responsibility of monitoring financial risk
management to a sub-commiftee of the Senior management team. The policies set by the Senior
management team are implemented by the company's finance department.

The director will revisit the appropriateness of this policy should the company's cperations change in size or
nature.




STONEGATE FARMERS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT {(CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

Principal risks and uncertainties (continued}
Credit Risk

The company's principal financial assets are bank balances and cash, trade and other receivables, and
investments.

The company's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade receivables. The amounts presented in the
balance sheet are net of allowances for doubtful receivables. An allowance for impairment is made where
there is an identified loss event which, based on previous experience, is evidence of a reduction in the
recoverability of the cash flows.

Trade debtors are managed in respect of credit and cash flow by policies concerning the credit offered ta
customers and the regular monitoring of amounts outstanding for both time and credit limits.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity Risk

In order to maintain liquidity to ensure that sufficient funds are available for ongoing operations and future
developments, the company uses a mixture of longer-term asset finance and short-term debt finance.

Market Risk

The company recognises the risk of competition in a highly active market. Through investment in our products,
genetics, facilities, and people we aim tv meet or exceed the demands of our customers and the consumer,
Being a 100% free range and organic operation, and so having long removed ourselves from caged and barn
egg production, the business is less at risk from consumer and retail pressure against intensive egg
production associated with lower welfare standards.

Key performance indicators

Given the straightforward nature of the company's operations, the director is of the opinion that analysis using
KPIs other than the financial resuits, is not necessary for an understanding of the development, performance
or position of the business.




STONEGATE FARMERS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

Health, safety and environment
The key focus of the business continues to be health, safety, quality, and the environment.

Our policies aim to provide and support a culture where health, safety, quality, and the environment are
consistently on our agenda. This has been achieved by ensuring that our team receive adequate training and
feel empowered to raise any concerns that they may have.

From the Food Quality Management System perspective, we are accredited against the British Retail
Consortium (Global Food Safety Initiative) rather than following 1SC9001. Our current BRC grade is AA* for
shell egg and AA+ for the convenience foods sites. The scope of these accreditations is as follows:

Shelf Egg

Grading and packing, of hen, goose, ostrich, pheasant, quail, duck, emu, turkey, rhea, and guinea fowl eggs.
Packing into pulp or plastic carions. Separation of shell from eggs and harvesting the liquid for filtering and
chilling <4% for further processing.

Convenience Foods

The cooking (boiling) coaling, sheliing of hen and quail's eggs, the blending of sandwich filiings, assembly of
hen and quail eggs with and without value-added components of bring into MAP, Non-MAP, bulk buckets and
bags. The poaching, pasteurisation of egg products packed into plastic film lidded trays. The breaking,
pasteurisation of liquid egg with and without additions pre and post pasteurisation, packed into bags, retail
cartons and pouches. The filling of Raw egg whites into bags.

Both Sites are also accredited against the BEIC (British Egg Industry Coungil) Lion Code, RSPCA (Royal
Society for The Pravention of Cruelty to Animals} and Organic Food Standards with both Organic Farmers and
Growers and Soil Association.

Stonegate Farmers are also member of Campden BRI Food Research Organisation and the Chilled Foods
Association.

$172 statement
This statement by the director describes how the responsibilities under 8172 {1} (a) to (f) of the Companies
Act 2006 have been approached,

The director;

+ considers having acted in good faith to promote the success of the company on behalf of the
employess, clients and suppliers of the business in relation to matters set outin s172.
« monitors and reviews strategic objectives against growth plans, and regular reviews at departmental

and senior management team level are held across the business in the key areas being H&S,

Financial performance, Operations, Human Resources and Risks and Opportunities.

cansiders H&S fundamental to the management of the business. Safe working practices that minimise

environmental impact are key to the success of the business and vitally important for our

stakeholders, the communities, and the environments we work in.

» recognises and understands that it is important to keep employees informed of all matters concerning
them and does this in several ways including site notices, meetings, verbal and written
communications, The views and interests of employees are considered in consultation with them
through working groups or forums, which evolve over time to meet the needs of all parties. The policy
of the company is to consult and discuss with employees any issues that arise in accordance with
relevant procedures or legislation.




STONEGATE FARMERS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

The fundamental principle in the governance of Stonegate Farmers is the clear, fair and trusting approach to
all interactions with emplayees, clients and suppliers; this is reflected in the length of service of employees
and management teams and the longevity of the relationships with our clients and suppliers.

The company's employees, clients and suppliers are critical to the success of the business and so it is
recognised that engagement is an important aspect in those relationships,

The company has an equal opportunities policy and is commitied o the principles within the policy in respect
of all stakeholders.

The company has built, and continues to grow, the business on a reputation for delivering exceilent customer
service, The company, through the senior management team and employees, strives conlinuously to improve
in every aspect of the products and services it pravides, for the mutual benefit of all stakehotders.

The director, supported by the senior management team, has overall responsibility for delivering the
company's strategy and values and for ensuring high standards of governance. The primary aim of the
director is to promote the long-term sustainable success of the company to generate benefit for the
stakeholders.

On behalf of the board

Mr A D Gott
Director

22| vonk




STONEGATE FARMERS LIMITED

DIRECTOR'S REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

The director presents his annual report and financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2023.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the company is the packing and marketing of free range & organic eggs and egg
products. The company contracts with a substantial number of Group and independent farmers to collect and
process eggs produced on their farms. The egg is processed and packed by the company and supplied to
retail and trade customers.

Results and dividends .
The results for the year are set out on page 12.

Ordinary dividends were paid amounting to £152,400. The director does not recommend payment of a further
dividend,

Director
The director who held office during the year and up to the date of sighature of the financial statements was as
follows:

Mr A D Goft

Disahled persons

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the aptitudes of
the applicant concerned. In the event of members of staff becoming disabled, every effort is made to ensure
that their emplayment within the company continues and that the appropriate training is arranged. It is the
policy of the company that the training, career development and promotion of disabled persons should, as far
as possible, be identical to that of other employees.

Employee involvement

The director recognises that the future success of the business is highly dependent upon the loyalty, skills and
motivation of company's employees and, therefore, encourages the supply of information on the progress of
their business unit and the company as a whole. Emplayee participation in improving the efficiency of the
business is actively sought at all levels through regular meetings. The company's policy is to consult and
discuss with employeas, through unions, staff councils and at meetings, matters iikely to affect employees’
interests.

Informiation about matters of concern to employees is given through information bulletins and reports which
seek to achieve a common awareness on the part of all employees of the financial and economic factors
affecting the company's performance.

Future developments

The company will continue to strengthen the business through development and evolution of high-quality core
products focussed on our customers' needs. Investment will continue in equipment and technology at the
primary packing site and new egg processing facility.

Auditor
The auditor, MHA Moore and Smalley, is deemed to be reappointed under section 487(2) of the Companies
Act 2006.




STONEGATE FARMERS LIMITED

DIRECTOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

Energy and carbon report

The company is not required to report its carbon emissions and energy use data because this informatian is
disclosed, on a consolidated basis, in the financial statements of Stonegate Food Group Limited. Copies of
these financial statements can be obtained from its registered office, Lacock Green, Corsham Road, Lacock,
Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN15 2LZ,

Strategic report

The company has chosen in accordance with Companies Act 2006, s. 414C(11) to set out in the company's
strategic report information required by Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups {Accounts and
Reports) Reguiations 2008, Sch. 7 to be contained in the directors’ report. It has done so in respect of
financial risk management objectives and palicies.

Statement of disclosure to auditor

So far as each person who was a director at the date of approving this report is aware, there is no relevant
audit information of which the company's auditor is unaware. Additionally, the directors individually have taken
all the necessary steps that they ought to have taken as directors in order to make themselves aware of all
relevant audit infarmation and to establish that the company's auditor is aware of that information.

On behalf of the board
ey

Mr A D Gott

Director




STONEGATE FARMERS LIMITED

DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

The director is responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the director to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
director has elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company
law the director must not approve the financial statements unless he is satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing
these financial statements, the director is required to:

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

. make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the company will continue in business.

The director is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. He
is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reascnable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and cther irregularities.




STONEGATE FARMERS LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF STONEGATE FARMERS LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Stonegate Farmers Limited (the 'company’) for the year ended 30
September 2023 which comprise the statement of comprehensive income, the balance sheet, the statement
of changes in equity and notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporifing Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:
« give a true and fair viaw of the state of the company's affairs as at 30 September 2023 and of its profit for
the year then ended;
« have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and
» have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities
for the audif of the financial sfatemenis section of our report. We are independent of the company in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fuffilled our other ethical responsibllities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have abtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion,

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the director's use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the wark we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at |east twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for
issue,

Our regponsibilities and the responsibilities of the director with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. The director is responsible for the other information contained
within the annual report. Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thareon. Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
incansistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a
material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is @ material misstatement of this other infarmation, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.




STONEGATE FARMERS LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT {CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF STONEGATE FARMERS LIMITED

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our apinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit:
+ the information given in the strategic report and the director's repaort for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
« the strategic report and the director's report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or the director's report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:
- adequate accounting records have not heen kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or
« the financial staterments are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
« certain disclosuras of director's remuneration specified by law are not made; or
= we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of director

As explained more fully in the director's responsibilities statement, the director is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the director determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are frae from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the financial statements, the
director is responsible for assessing the company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
director either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alterhative but to do
S0,

Auditor's respansibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but {s not a guarantee that an audit canducted in
accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are vonsidered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compiiance with laws and regulations, We design
procedures in line with our responsiilities, oullined above, fo detect material misstatements in respect of
irregularities, including fraud. The specific procedures for this engagement and the extent to which these are
capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, are detailed below:

« Enqguiries with management about any known or suspected instances af non-compliance with laws
and regulations;

» Enguires with management about any known or suspected instances of fraud;

+ Review of minutes of meetings of management;

- Examination of journal entries and other adjustments to test for appropriateness and identify any
instances of management override of controls;

- Review of legal and professional expenditure to identify any evidence of ongoing litigation or

enguiries;

Auditing the risk of fraud in revenue, including through the testing of income cut off at the period end

and through sales transaction testing toc provide comfort that revenue is completely stated in the

financial statements.
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STONEGATE FARMERS LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF STONEGATE FARMERS LIMITED

We identified the following areas as those most likely to have a material impact on the financial statements:
employment law, health and safety legislation, food hygiene and safety regulations, and compliance with the
UK Companies Act.

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that some material misstatements in
the financial statements may not be detected, even though the audit is properly planned and parformed in
accordance with the I1ISAs (UK). For instance, the further removed non-compliance is from the events and
transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the auditor is to become aware of it or to
recognize the non-compliance.

A further description of our responsibilities is available on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at: https://
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company's memhers, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006, Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

jobj\p)\/ -

—

Joe Sulilivan

Senior Statutory Auditor

For and on behalf of MHA Moore and Smalley
Chartered Accountants

Statutory Auditor

Richard House

9 Winckley Sguare
Preston

PRt 3HP
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-1 -



STONEGATE FARMERS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

Notes
Turnover 4
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Administrative expenses
Other operating income
Operating profit 5
Interest receivable and similar income 8
Interest payable and similar expenses 9
Profit before taxation
Tax on profit 10

Profit for the financial year

Other comprehensive income

Actuarial {loss)/gain on defined benefit
pension schemes

Tax relating to other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

52 weeks
ended 30
September
2023

£

150,977,768
(140,838,231

10,039,537

(24,016,409)
16,545,102

2,568,230

55,561
(432,987)

2,190,804
(1,064,468)

1,126,336

(272,000)
59,840

914,176

53 weeks
ended 1
Qc¢tober

2022
as restated
£

120,219,511
{114,571,852)

5,647,659

(20,711,515)
15,835,972

772,116

967
(393,764)

379,319

(37,017)

342,302

945,000
(179,550)

1,107,752

The statement of comprehensive income has been prepared on the basls that all operations are continuing

operations.

-12-



STONEGATE FARMERS LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Tangible assets
Invastments

Current assets

Stocks

Debtorg

Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within
one year

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after
more than one year

Provisions for liabilities

Deferred tax liabilily

Net assets excluding pension liability
Defined benefit pension liability

Net assets

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital

Profit and loss reserves

Total equity

The firanciai statements were approved and signed by the

PR

Mr A D Gott
Director

Company Registration No. 00740635

Notes

12
13
14

16

17

18

19

23

25

24

30 September 2023

£

1,645,359
35,121,164
312,539
36,879,062

(28,355 575)

2,034,245

£

44,691
12,845,004

12,989,695

8,623,487

21,613,182

(3,749,339}

(2,034,245}

15,829,598
15,829,598

1,000
15,828,598

15,829,598

director and

1 Octoher 2022

£

1,583,951
33,026,553
230,969
34,841,473

(27,483,284)

1,028,481

£

79,975
11,687,610
6,069

11,773,654

7,358,189

19,131,843

(3,035,560)

(1,028,461)

15,067,822

15,067,822

1,000

15,066,822

15,067,822

authorised for issue on

-13-



STONEGATE FARMERS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

Balance at 3 October 2021

Year ended 1 QOctober 2022:

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Actuarial gains on defined benefit plans

Tax relating to other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year
Dividends

Balance at 1 October 2022

Year ended 30 September 2023:

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Actuarial gains on defined benefit plans

Tax relating to other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year
Dividends

Balance at 30 September 2023

Notes

1"

11

Share Profit and Total
capital loss
resarves

£ £ £

1,000 14,111,470 14,112,470

- 342,302 342,302

- 945,000 945,000

- (179,550)  (179,550)

- 1,107,752 1,107,752

- {152,400} (152,400)

1,000 15,066,822 15,067,822

- 1,126,336 1,126,336

- (272,000) (272,000)

- 59,840 59,840

- 914,176 914,176

- (152,400)  (152,400)

1,000 15,828,588 15,829,598

14 -



STONEGATE FARMERS LIMITED

NQTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

1

1.1

Accounting policies

Company information
Stonegate Farmers Limited is a private company limited by shares incorporated in England and Wales,
The registered office is Lacock Green, Corsham Road, Lacock, Chippenham, SN15 2LZ.

Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” ("FRS 102") and the requirements of the
Companies Act 2008.

The financial statements are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the company.
Monetary amounts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest £.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. The principal
accounting policies adopted are saf out below.

This company is a qualifying entity for the purposes of FRS 102, being a member of a group where the
parent of that group prepares publicly available consolidated financial statements, including this
campany, which are intended to give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and
profit or loss of the group. The company has therefore taken advantage of exemptians from the foflowing
disclosure requirements:

. Section 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows' — Presentation of a statement of cash flow and related
notes and disclosuras;

« Section 11 'Basic Financial Instruments’ and Section 12 ‘Other Financial Instrument Issues’ —
Carrying amounts, interest incomefexpense and net gains/losses for each category of financial
instrument; basls of determining fair values; details of collateral, loan defaults or breaches,
details of hedges, hedging fair value changes recognised in profit or loss and in other
comprehensive income;

«+ Section 33 'Related Party Disclosures’ — Compensation for key managsmant personnel.

The company has taken advantage of the exemption under section 400 of the Companies Act 2006 not
to prepare consalidated accounts, as it is included in the consolidated accounts of a larger group. The
financial statements present information about the company as an individual entity and not about ils
group. The results of the company are included in the consolidated financial statements of Stonegate
Food Group Limited, registered office l.acock Green, Corsham Road, Lacock, Chippenham, Wiltshire,
SN152LZ.

-15 -



STONEGATE FARMERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

Accounting policies {Continued}

Going concern

Inflationary pressures from the impact of pelitical instability and regional conflicts had a significant
impact on many businesses in 2022-23 with food producers no less severely impacted than other
sectors. The director believes that the company is well placed to minimise any impact.

Management are continuously assessing the impact of inflationary pressures on customers and the
supply chain with regular contact taking place throughout the supply chain to minimise any disruption.
Where forward positions have been taken the company is protected fram that cover in the short to
medium term. Costs that are exposed to the current market volatility are being managed pro-actively
through sympathetic engagement with our strategic suppliers and customers. The company remains
confident of its ability to appropriately manage the short to medium term volatility being generated by
these risks. Actions have also been taken in the past to enable the business to establish a strong
financial platform, and this together with the current balance sheet strength positions the company well.
Cash flow projections have been prepared for the campany to cover at least twelve months following
the approval of the financial statements, which indicate that the company will generate sufficient
resources to meet their abligations as they fall due.

After considering the impacl of the above, at the time of approving the financial statements, the director
has a reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future. Thus the director continues to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting in preparing the financial statements.

Turnover

Turnover is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods
pravided in the normal course of business, and is shown net of VAT. The fair value of consideration takes
into account trade discounts, settlement discounts and volume rebates,

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods have passed to the buyer (usually on dispatch of the goods), the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction wiil flow to
the entity and the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably,

Intangible fixed assets other than goodwill
Intangible assets acquired separately from a business are recognised at cost and are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amartisation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual values over their useful
lives on the following hases:

Software 20% to 33% per anhum
Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost, net of

depreciation and any impairment losses.

Once assets are brought into use, depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less
their residual values over their useful lives on the following bases:

Freehold land and buildings Land not depreciated, buildings 2% per annum
Plant and machinery 10% to 33% per annum
Motor vehicles 17% to 25% per annum
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STONEGATE FARMERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

Accounting policies {Continued)

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale
proceeds and the carrying value of the asset, and is credited or charged to profit or loss.

Fixed asset investments

Interests in subsidiaries are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. The investments are assessed for impairment at each reporting date
and any impairment losses or reversals of impairment losses are recognised immediately in profit or
loss,

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the company. Control is the power to govern the financial and
operating policies af the entity so as to abtain benefits from its activities.

Impairment of fixed assets

At each reporting pericd end date, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment tess. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to delermine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the
recaverable amount of an individual asset, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs,

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amaunt, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount,
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Recognised impairment losses are reversad if, and only if, the reasons for the impairment loss have
ceased to apply. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or
cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Stocks
Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and estimated selling price less costs to complete and sell.

At each reporting date, an assessment is made for impairment. Any excess of the carrying amount of
stocks over ils estimated selling price less costs to complete and sell is recognised as an impairment
loss in profit or loss. Reversals of impairment losses are also recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are basic financial assets and inciude cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities,
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STONEGATE FARMLRS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

1

Accounting policies {Continued)

1.10 Financial instruments

Thea company has elected to apply the provisions of Section 11 ‘Basic Financial Instruments’ and Section
12 'Other Financial Instruments Issues’ of FRS 102 to all of its financial instruments.

Financial instruments are recognised in the company's halance sheet when the company becomes party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and iiabilities are offset, with the net amounts presented in the financial statements,
when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and setlle the liability simultaneously.

Basic financial assets

Basic financial assets, which include debtors and cash and bank balances, are initially measured at
transaction price including transaction costs and are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the
transaction is measured at the present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of
inferast. Financial assets classified as receivable within one year are not amortised.

Othor financial assets
All of the company's assets ars basic financial assets.

Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets, other than those held at fair value through prafit and loss, are assessed for indicators
of impairment at each reporting end date.

Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that vecurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows have been
affected. If an asset is impaired, the impairment loss is the difference between the carrying amount and
the present vajue of the estimated cash flows discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate,
The impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

If there is a decrease in the impairment foss arising from an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the impairment is reversed. The reversal is such that the current carrying amount does not
exceed what the carrying amount would have been, had the impairment not previously been recognised.
The impairment reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

Derecagnition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised anly when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire or are seitled, or when the company transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to another entity, or if some significant risks and rewards of ownership are
retained but control of the asset has transferred to another party that is able to sell the asset In its
entirety to an unrelated third party.

Classification of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the coniractual
arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the company after deducting all of its liabilities.
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STONEGATE FARMERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED}
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

1.1

1.12

Accounting policies (Continued)}

Basic financial liabilities

Basic financial liabilities, including creditors, and loans from fellow group that are classified as debt, are
initially recognised at transaction price unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction,
where the debt instrument is measured at the present value of the future payments discounted at a
market rate of interest. Financial liabilities classified as payable within one year are not amortised.

Debt instruments are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate mathad.

Trade creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Amounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within one year or less. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade creditors are
recognised initially at transaction price and subseguently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Other financial liabilities
All of the company's liabilities are basic financial liabilities.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
Financial liabilites are derecognised when the company's contractual obligations expire or are
discharged or cancelled.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of transaction
costs. Dividends payable on equity instruments are recognised as liabilities ance they are no longer at
the discretion of the company.

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payabie and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported in the profit and loss acceunt because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
company's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporiing end date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all timing differences and defarred tax assets are
racognised to the extent that it is probable that they will be recovered against the reversal of deferred tax
liabilittes or other future taxable profits. Such assets and liabilities are nol recognised if the timing
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition of other assels and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the profit and loss account, except
when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is aiso dealt
with in equity. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when the company has a legally enforceable
right ta offset current tax assets and liabilities and the deferred tax assetls and liabilities relate to taxes
levied by the same tax authority.
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STONEGATE FARMERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

1.13

1.14

1.15

1.16

Accounting policies (Continued)

Employee benefits
The costs of short-term employee benefits are recognised as a liability and an expense, unless those
costs are reguired to be recognised as part of the cost of stock or fixed assets.

The cost of any unused holiday entitlement is recognised in the period in which the employee's services
are received.

Termination benefits are recognised immediately as an expense when the company is demonstrably
committed to terminate the employment of an employee or to provide termination benefits.

Retirement benefits
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they fall
due.

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease fransfer substantialty all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessees. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets at the lower of the assets fair value at the
date of inception and the present value of the minimum lease payments. The related liability is included
in the balance sheet as a finance lease cbligation. Lease payments are treated as consisting of capital
and interest elements. The interest is charged lo profit or loss so as to praduce a constant periodic rate
of Interesl on he remaining balance of the liability.

Rentals payable under operating leases, including any lease incentives raceived, are charged lo profit or
loss on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease except where another more systematic
basis Is more representative of the time pattern in which economic henefits from the leases asset are
consumed.

Foreign exchange

Transactions in currencies other than pounds sterling are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. At each reporting end date, monelary assets and liabilities that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retransiated at the rales prevailing on the reporting end date.
Gains and losses arising on translation in the period are included in profit or loss.

Change in accounting policy

The directar has reviewed the categorisation of expenditure, and has decided to reclassify certain
amounts to better reflect the activities of the company. The comparative figures have been restated to
reflect this reclassification of costs, resulting in an increase in cost of sales of £6,588,858, and a
reduction in administrative expenses of £6,589,858. There is no other effect on the figures previously
reported.
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STONEGATE FARMERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

3  Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the applicalion of the company's accounting policies, the director is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from olher sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an angoing basis. Revisions to accounting
eslimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised where the revision affects only
that period, or in the periad of the revision and future periods where the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Critical judgements
The following judgements (apart from those involving estimates) have had the most significant effect on
amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Impairment of trade debtors

At each balance sheet date, management undertake an assessment of the recaverability of trade
debtors based upon their knowledge of the customers, ageing of the balances outstanding and previous
write off history. Where necessary, an impairment is recorded as a doubtful debt.

The actual level of debt collected may differ from the estimated leve! of recovery.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The estimates and assumptions which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities are as follows.

Accruals and provisions

At each balance sheet date, management undertake an assessment of the costs which have not yet
been invoiced based upon their contractual arrangements and include appropriate provisions for these
costs.

Pension and other post-employment benefits

The company has an obligation to pay pension benefits to certain employees. The cost of these benefits
and the present value of the obligation depend upon a number of factors, including; Life expectancy,
salary increases, asset valuations and inflation.

The director estimates these factors in determining the pension abligation at the balance sheet date, The
assumptions reflect historic experience and current trends. Refer to the notes to the accounts for
disclosures relating to the defined benefit pension schemes.

in order to assist in adhering to the criteria of FRS102, Section 28 'Employee benefits', the directar uses
the services of an independent external Actuary, who possess all relevant professional qualifications to
deliver the calculations of the defined benefit schemes’ balance as at the reporting date.

The director believes that this approach minimises any estimation uncertainly to an acceptable level.
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STONEGATE FARMERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

4 Turnover and other revenue
An analysis of the company's turnover is as follows:

Turnover analysed by class of business
Altributable to the principal activity

Turnover analysed by geographical market
United Kingdom

Other revenue
Interest income

5 Operating profit
Operating profit for the year is stated after charging/{crediting):

Depreciation of owned tangible fixed assets

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets held under finance leases
Profit on disposal of tangible fixed assets

Amortisation of intangible assets

Operating lease charges

6 Auditor's remuneration

Fees payable to the company's auditor and associates:

For audit services
Audit of the financial statements of the company

For other services

Taxation compliance services
Other taxation services

All other non-audit services

2023 2022

£ £
150,977,768 120,219,511
2023 2022

£ £
150,977,768 120,219,511
2023 2022

£ £

55,561 967
2023 2022

£ £
895,919 448,682
1,035,440 820,256
(500) (8,000)
35,284 35,284
1,419,407 1,580,762
2023 2022

£ £

29,200 25,500
10,300 9,550
16,890 7,850
4,475 4,150
31,665 21,550
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STONEGATE FARMERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMEBER 2023

7 Employees

The average monthly number of persons (including directors) employed by the company during the year

was:
2023 2022
Number Number
Production 282 223
Sales and distribution 144 106
Administration 77 73
Total 503 402

Their aggregate remuneration comprised:

2023 2022
£ £
Wages and salaries 19,831,481 15,764,988
Social security costs 1,586,156 1,328,402
Pension costs 381,518 334,364

21,799,166 17,427,754

8 Interest recaivable and simiiar Incoime

2023 2022
£ £

Interest income
Interest on the net defined benefit asset 55,000 -
Other interest income 561 967
Total income 55,561 967

9 Interest payable and similar expenses

2023 2022
£ £
Interest on hank overdrafts and loans 48,819 81,776
Other interest on financial liabilities 218,547 173,607
Interest on finance leases and hire purchase contracts 165,621 133,381
Net interest on the net defined benefit balance - 25,000
432,987 393,764
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STONEGATE FARMERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

10

Taxation

2023 2022

£ £

Current tax
Adjustments in respect of priar periods (1,156) -
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of timing differences 1,041,773 62,063
Changes in tax rates 142728 19,596
Adjustment in respect of prior periods (118,877) (44,632
Total deferred tax 1,065,624 37,017
Total tax charge 1,064,468 37,017

The actual charge for the year can be reconciled to the expected charge for the year based on the profit
or loss and the standard rate of tax as follows:

2023 2022
£ £
Profit before taxation 2,190,804 379,319
Expected tax charge based on the standard rate of corporation tax in the
UK of 22.00% (2022: 12.00%) 481,977 72,071
Tax effect of expenses that are net deductible in determining taxable profit 39,804 18,633
Adjustments in respect of prior years {1,156) -
Effect of change in corporation tax rate 142,728 19,596
Group relief 547,049 45,246
Other permanent differences (27,087) (73,897)
Deferred tax adjustments in respect of prior years (118,877 (44,632)
Taxation charge for the year 1,064,468 37,017

In addition to the amount charged to the profit and less account, the following amounts relating to tax
have been recognised directly in other comprehensive inccme:

2023 2022
£ £

Deferred tax arising on:
Actuarial differences recognised as other comprahensive incorme {59.840) 179,550

-4 -



STONEGATE FARMERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3¢ SEPTEMBER 2023

10 Taxation {Continued)

Factors affecting future tax and charges

In March 2021 the Chancellor confirmed, in the budget, an increase in the corporation tax rate from 18%
to 25%. The Finance Bill 2021 had its third reading on 24 May 2021 and became substantively
enacted. There were announcements fo the contrary in the mini-budget of October 2022, but these
announcements have since been reversed and so the new rate of 25% remains substantively
enacted. Therefore, the timing differences expected to reverse on or after 1 April 2023 have been
accounted for at 25% and therefore deferred tax has been provided for at 25% (2022: 25%).

11 Dividends

2023 2022
£ £
Final paid 152,400 152,400
12 Intangible fixed assets
Software
£
Cost
At 2 October 2022 and 30 September 2023 190,013
Amortisation and impairment
At 2 October 2022 110,038
Amoertisation charged for the year 35,284
At 30 September 2023 145,322
Carrying amount
At 30 September 2023 44,691
At 1 October 2022 74,975
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STONEGATE FARMERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

13

14

Tangible fixed assets

Cost

At 2 October 2022
Additions
Disposals

At 30 September 2023
Depreclation and impairment
At 2 October 2022

Depreciation charged in the year
Eliminated in respect of disposals

At 30 September 2023

Carrying amount
At 30 September 2023

At 1 October 2022

Freehold land Plant and Motor
and buildings machinery vehicles
£ £ £

004,446 16,659,396 280,857
- 1,007,689 2,181,064
- - (19,714)

Total

£

17,844,699
3,188,753
(19,714)

904,446 17,667,085 2,442,207 21,013,738

904,446 5,008,687 243956 6,157,089
- 1685234 246,125 1,931,359
- - (19,714) (19,714}
004,446 6,693,921 470,367 8,068,734
- 10,973,164 1,971,840 12,945,004
- 11,650,709 36,901 11,687,610

The net carrying value of tangible fixed assets includes the following in respect of assets held under

finance leases or hire purchase contracts.

Plant and machinery
Motor vehicles

Fixed asset investments

Unlisted investmenis

2023 2022

£ £
4,795,000 5,688,448
1,860,808 11,835
6,755,908 5,610,283
2023 2022

£ £

- 6,069
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STONEGATE FARMERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEFTEMBER 2023

14 Fixed asset investments

Movements in fixed asset investments

Cost

At 2 October 2022
Disposals

At 30 September 2023

Carrying amount
At 30 September 2023

At 1 October 2022

15 Subsidiaries

{Continued)

Investments
other than
loans

£

5,069
(6,069)

6,069

These financial statements are separate company financial statements for Stonegate Farmers Limited.

Details of the company's significant subsidiaries at 30 September 2023 are as follows:

Name of undertaking Address Class of
shares held

Stonegate Agriculture Limited 1 Ordinary

Thames Valley Eggs (Praduction) Limited 1 Ordinary

Registered office addresses (all UK untess otherwise indicated):

1 Lacock Green, Corsham Road, Lacock, Chippenharm, Wiltshire, SN15 21.Z

16 Stocks
2023
£
Eggs, egg products and packaging 1,545,359

% Held
Direct Indirect

100.00
- 100.00

2022
£

1,583,951
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STONEGATE FARMERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

17  Debtors

2023 2022
Amounts falling due within one year: £ £
Trade debtors 14,795,345 13,971,554
Amounts owed by group undeitakings 13,728,359 14,732,938
Other debtors 1,860,917 1,173,819
Prepayments and accrued income 4,736,543 1,646,801
35,121,164 31,525,112
2023 2022
Amounts falling due after more than one year: £ £
Prepayments and accrued income - 1,501,441
Total debtors 35,121,164 33,026,553

18 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2023 2022
Notes £ £
Obligations under finance leases 21 1,333,690 1,181,542
Other loans 20 3,824,120 8,973,421
Trade creditors 9,491,709 8,691,611
Amounts due to group undertakings 5,324,046 3,924,208
Other taxation and social security 448,003 380,662
Other creditors 251,552 136,182
Accruals and deferred income 7,682,455 4,195,758

28,355,575 27,483,284

14 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

2023 2022
Notes £ £
Obligations under finance leases 21 3,749,339 3,035,560
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STONEGATE FARMERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED}
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

20

21

22

Loans and overdrafts

2023 2022

£ £

Other loans 3,824,120 8,973,421
Payable within one year 3,824 120 8,973,421

The company meets its day-to-day working capital requirements through an invoice discounting facility
(shown as other loans above), which is secured by a debenture over the assets of the company. The
invaice discounting facility is repayable on demand.

Finance lease obligations

2023 2022
Future minimum lease payments due under finance ieases: £ £
Within one year 1,336,680 1,181,542
In two to five years 3,748,339 3,028,727
In over five years - 6,833

5,083,029 4,217,102

Finance lease payments represent rentals payable by the company for certain items of plant and
machinery held under hire purchase, Leases include purchase options at the end of the lease period,
and no restrictions are placed on the use of the assets. The average lease term is 5 years. All leases
are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental
payments. The creditor is secured on the assets to which it relates.

Provisions for liabilities

2023 2022
Notes £ £
Deferred tax liabilities 23 2,034,245 1,028,461
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23

24

25

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where the company has a legally enforceable right to do so.
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for financial reporting purposes:

Liabilities Liahilities

2023 2022
Balances: £ £
Accelerated capital allowances 2,047,710 1,555,597
Tax losses - {521,078)
Short-term timing differences {13,465) (6,080)
2,034,245 1,028,461
2023
Movements in the year: £
Ljability at 2 October 2022 1,028,461
Charge to profit or loss 1,065,624
Credit to other comprehensive income (59,840}

Liability at 30 September 2023 2,034,245

As at the signing date of these financial statements, the company has not finalised its capital
expenditure programme for the forthcoming year, and therefore an assessment as to the likely
movement of the related timing differences cannot be made.

Share capital

2023 2022 2023 2022
Qrdinary share capital Number Number £ £
Issued and fully paid
Ordinary shares of £1 each 1,000 1,000 1,600 1,000

Refirement benefit schames

Defined contribution schemes
The company operates a defined contribution pension scheme for all qualifying employees. The assets
of the scheme are held separately from those of the company in an independently administered fund.

The charge to profit or loss in respect of defined contribution schemes was £381,518 (2022: £334,364).
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25

Retirement benefit schemes A {Continued)

Defined benefit schemes

The company operates pension arrangements providing benefits based on final pensionable salary for
its employees. The assets in each of the schemes are held separately from those of the companies
being invested by professional investment managers. There are two partly funded defined benefit
schemes for which the company is responsible: the Stonegate Farmers Limited Scheme and the
Thames Valley Eggs Limited Scheme.

The total net pension liability recognised at the year end is £nil (2022: £nil). This comprises a net liability
of £nil (2022: £nil) for the Stonegate Farmers Limited Scheme, and a net tability of £nil (2022: £nil) for
the Thames Valiey Eggs Limited Scheme,

The company has not recognised a pension scheme asset at the balance sheet date as it cannot
demonstrate that it would likely benefit from either qualifying criteria as stated in FRS102 section 28.22,
namely that it cannot recover the surplus either through reduced future contributions or through refunds
from the defined pension plan. As a consequence a restriction on the scheme surplus of £410,000 has
been recognised far the Stonegate Farmers Limited Scheme, and a restricticn on the scheme surplus of
£833,000 has been recognised for the Thames Valley Eggs Limited Scheme, such that each scheme
surplus is recognised at a balance of £Nil within the balance shaet at 30 September 2023,

Further analysis far each scheme is provided below.
Stonegate Farmers Limited Scheme

The Stonegate Farmers Limited Scheme was paid up with no further accrual of future benefits with
effect from 30 September 2001.

An actuarial valuation of Stonegate Farmers Limited Scheme as at 1 October 2019 showed a funding
shortfall of £472,000. To eliminate the shortfall the Trustees and the Employer agreed:

Annual contributions of £222,000 per annum from 1 October 2019 to 30 September 2020;
Annual contributions of £55,000 per annum from 1 October 2020 to 31 March 2024,

The last actuarial valuation of the Stonegate Farmers Limited Scheme was as at 1 October 2022, The
report has been updated to take accounts of the requirements of FRS 102 in order to assess the
scheme deficit at 30 September 2023.

Thames Valley Eggs Limited Scheme

The Thames Valley Eggs Limited Scheme was paid up with no further accrual of future benefits with
effect from 1 Octobear 2008.

An actuarial valuation of the Thames Valley Eggs Limited Scheme as at 1 Ostober 2018 showed a
funding shorifall of £1.008 million. Te eliminate the shortfall the Trustees and the Employer agreed:

Annual contributions of £225,000 per annum from 1 Qctober 2019 to 30 September 2020,
Annual contributions of £162,000 per annum from 1 Octeber 2020 to 31 March 2025.

The last actuarial valuation of the Thames Valley Eggs Limited Scheme was as at 1 October 2022. The
report has been updated to take accounts of the requirements of FRS 102 in order to assess the
scheme deficit at 30 September 2023,

In respect of the Stonegate Farmers Limited Scheme the major assumptions used by the actuary for
FRS 102 purposes were:
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25 Retirement benefit schemes

Key assumpfions
Discount rate
Expected rate of increase of pensions in payment

CP! inftation
Expected return on plan assets

Mortality assumptions

Assumed life expactations on retirement at age 65:
Retiring today

- Males

- Females

Amaunts recognised in the profit and loss account

Net interest on defined benefit liability/{asset)

Amounts taken to other comprehensiva income

Return on scheme assets excluding interest income

Actuarial changes related to obligations

Effect of changes in the amount of surplus that is not recoverable

Total costs/{income)

The amounts included in the balance sheet arising fram the company's
obligations in respect of defined benefit plans are as follows:

Present value of defined benefit obligations
Fair value of plan assels

Surplus In scheme
Rastriction on scheme assets

Totat liability recognised

(Continued)

2023 2022
% %
540 5.70
5.00 5.00
3.20 3.50
570 2.20
2023 2022
Years Years
21.6 216
237 237
2023 2022
£ £
(20,000} 21,000
2023 2022
£ £
(116,000) 416,000
132,000 (1,681,000)
59,000 351,000
75,000 (914,000)
2023 2022
£ £
3,151,000 2,987,000
(3,561,000} (3,338,000}
(410,000) {351,000)
410,000 351,000
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25 Retirement benefit schemes

Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations

Liabilities at 2 October 2022
Benefits paid

Actuarial gains and losses
Interest cost

At 30 September 2023

The defined benefit obligations arise from plans which are wholly or partly funded.

Movements in the fair value of plan assels

Fair value of assels at 2 October 2022

Interest income

Return on plan assets (excluding amourts included in net interest)
Benefits paid

Contributions by the employer

At 30 September 2023

Fair value of plan assets at the reporting period end

Equities

Diversified Growth Funds
Fixed interest

Property

Cash

2023
£

2,135,600
569,760
605,370
142,440
106,830

{Continued)

2023
£

2,987,000

(136,000)
132,000
168,000

3,151,000

2023
£

3,338,000
188,000
116,000

(136,000}
55,000

3,561,000

2022
£

2,002,800
567,450
467,320
166,900
133,520

3,561,000

3,338,000

The pension plan assets do not include ordinary shares issued by the sponsoring employer nor do they

inciude property occupied by the sponsecring employer.

26 Retirement benefit schemes

In respect of the Thames Valley Eggs Limited Scheme the major assumptions used by the actuary for

FRS 102 purposes were:
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26 Retirement benefit schemes

Key assumptions
Discount rate
Expected rate of increase of pensions in payment

CPI inflation
Expected return on plan assets

Mortallty assumptions

Assumed life expectations on retirement at age 65:
Retiring tcday

- Males

- Females

Amounts recognised in the profit and loss account

Net interest on defined benefit liability/(asset)

Amounts taken to other comprehensive income
Return on scheme assets excluding interest income
Actuarial changes related to obligations

Effect of changes in the amount of surplus that is not recoverable

Total costs/(income)

The amounts included in the balance sheet arising from the company's
obligations in respect of defined benefit plans are as follows:

Present value of defined benefit abligations
Fair value of plan assets

Surplus in scheme
Restriction on scheme assets

Total liability recognised

(Continued)

2023 2022

% %

540 540

3.00/3.20 3.00/3.50

3.20 3.50

540 2.20

2023 2022

Years Years

218 216

23.7 23.7

2023 2022

£ £

(35,000) 4,000

2023 2022

£ £

(13,000) 572,000
21,000 {1,247,000)

189,000 644,000
197,000 (31,000)

2023 2022

£ £

3,938,000 4,038,000
(4,771,000) {4,682,000)
(833,000) (644,000)

833,000 644,000
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26 Retirement benefit schemes

(Continued)

2023

Movemenls in the present value of defined benefit obligations £
Liabilities at 2 October 2022 4,038,000
Benefits paid (338,000)
Actuarial gains and losses 21,000
Interest cost 218,000
At 30 September 2023 3,938,000

The defined benefit obligations arise from plans which are wholly or partly funded.

2023

Movementis in the fair value of plan assels £
Fair value of assets at 2 October 2022 4,682,000
Interest income 253,000
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest) 13,000
Benefits paid (338,000)
Contributions by the employer 162,000
At 30 September 2023 4,771,000
2023 2022

Fair value of plan assets af the reporting petiod end £ £
Equities 2,385,500 2,247,360
Diversified Growth Funds 811,070 795,940
Fixed interest 906,490 842,760
Property 524,810 608,660
Cash 143,130 187,280
4,771,000 4,682,000

The pension plan assets do not include ordinary shares issued by the sponsoring employer nor do they

include property occupied by the sponsoring employer.
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27

28

29

30

Financial commitments, guarantees and contingent liabilities

The company is party to a cross guarantee in favour of HSBC UK Bank plc. As part of the cross
composite guarantee between the companies under common ccntrol, a morigage debenture exists
which provides HSBC UK Bank plc with charges aver all company assets, as security against its
exposure to debt. The total liability under this guarantee across these companies at 2 October 2021 was
£8,151,926. On 12 October 2021 the total liability under this guarantee across these companies was
fimited to £1,400,000.

The company is party to a cross guarantee in favour of HSBC UK Bank plc. As part of the cross
composite guarantee between the group companies, an unlimited multilateral guarantes exists which
provides HSBC UK Bank plc with charges over all company assets, as security against its exposure to
debt. The total liability under this guarantee across these companies is £2,417,200 (2022: £2,769,879).

The company is party to a cross guarantee in favour of HSBC Equipment Finance (UK) Limited in
retation to the financing arrangements for various assets in group companies. The total liability under this
guarantee across these companies is £675,627 (2022: £820,655).

Operating lease commitments

Lessee
At the reporting end dale the company had outstanding commitments for fulure minimum lease
paymsnts under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:

2023 2022

£ £

Within one year 1,361,962 1,419,407
Between two and five years 4,780,882 4,264,280
In over five years 5,318,560 6,341,360

11,461,404 12,025,047

Capital commitments

Amounts contracted for but not provided in the financial statements:

2023 2022
£ £
Acquisition of tangible fixed assets 36,837 322,345

Related party transactions

During the year the company made purchases of £1,350,028 (2022: £1,182,624) from the director and
companies with a common directaor, and received management charge income of £100,000 (2022:
£299,719) from companies with a commaon direcior.

At the year end a total of £777,581 {2022: £647,534) was due from companies with a common director,
and a total of £nil {2022: £333,604) was due to companies with a common director.

In accordance with FRS102, Section 33 'Related Party Transactions', transactions with other group
undertakings owned 100% within the group have not been disclosed in these financial statemenits.
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31

32

Directors' transactions

At 1 Octoher 2022 £10,771 was due to the director. During the year the company advanced £153,774 to
the director. The director repaid £152,400, and interest of £561 was charged on the overdrawn balance
at the official HMRC rate. At 30 September 2023 £8,836 was due to the director. The maximum amount
owed to the company during the year was £78,593.

Ultimate controlling party

The immediate parent company is Stonegate Food Group Limited.

The largest and smallest group in which the results of the company are consolidated is that headed by
Stonegate Food Group Limited, registered office Lacock Green, Corsham Road, Lacock, Chippenham,
Wiltshire, SN15 2LZ. The consolidated financial statements of this group are available to the public and
may be obtained from Caompanies House, Cardiff,

-37 -



Company registration number 11153598 {(England and Wales)

STONEGATE FOOD GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

@ mha
MOORE & SMALLEY

T 4 i



STONEGATE FOOD GROUP LIMITED

COMPANY INFORMATION

Director Mr A D Gott
Secretary Mr 8 G Marse
Company number 11153598

Registered office Lacock Green
Carsham Road
Lacock
Chippenham
SN152LZ

Auditor MHA Moore and Smalley
Richard House
9 Winckley Square
Preston
PR1 3HP




STONEGATE FOOD GROUP LIMITED

CONTENTS

Strategic repaort

Director's report

Direclor's responsibilities statement

Independent auditor's report

Group statement of comprehensive income

Group balance sheet

Company balance sheet

Group statement of changes in equity

Company statement of changes in equity

Group statement of cash flows

Notes to the financial staternents

Page

11

12-14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21-48




STONEGATE FOOD GROUP LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

The director presents the strategic report for the year ended 30 September 2023.

Principal activity
The principal activity of the company was the holding of investments in a trading Group.

The principal activities of the Group continued to be that of free range and organic poultry farming for the
production of eggs, along with the packing, marketing and sale of eggs and egg related products.

The Group works closely with producers to collect, grade and package free range and organic eggs. We
deliver daily from hen houses right across the country to many of the UK's ieading supermarkets and to the
most exclusive restaurants, as well as first class egg products to some of the biggest names in food
manufacturing.

Every discerning consumer who purchases our eggs has peace of mind in knowing they are produced in the
UK to the rigorous BEIC "British Lion" quality standard. By working in collaboration with our producers,
wholesalers and top retailers, we can rapidly identify and satisfy the ever-changing demands of those
consumers.

Review of the business

The Group experienced turnover growth of 23% in the period to £195.6m {2022: £158.8m). Operating profit
was £4.8m (2022: £1.0m), profitability improved as commodity inflation pressures eased combined with fower
availability of eggs in the UK. The director considers the Group to be in a strong financial position given net
assets of £12.3m as of 30 September 2023 (2022: £9.5m).

The Group will continue to strengthen the business through the development and evalution of high-quality
core products focused on our customers' needs. Investment will continue in equipment and technology at the
primary packing site.

During the year, the Group has continued to invest in its grading capabilities. The Group has also continued to
invest in its new egg processing facility to provide customers and coehsumers with a wider range of products to
meet their requirements.

The Group continues to support and invest in its supply chain focusing on providing a competitive, sustainable
mode! for the long term. Within the competitive marketplace in which we operale, we face the constant
chalienge of being both adaptive and reactive to market price changes such as feed prices.

Throughout the year, the Group has continued to invest in staff at all levels, which we believe to be important,
not least for the productivity gains that result.
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STRATEGIC REPORT {CONTINUED)
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Principal risks and uncertainties

We have a long and strong relationship with our customers, working together o ensure the end consumer
demands, both now and in the future, can be met and often exceeded. We continue to monitor market trends
across egg types and sizes to ensure we have the right mix to meet customer demand.

Raw Material Risk
The volatility of commadity prices, particularly wheat, is a constant challenge for the Group, In addition to
reviewing the market trends we work with both our suppliers and customers to minimise the impact o any one

party.

Supply Risk

The risk to supply of egg has continued in the year with the impact of the Russia-Ukraine war on costs, and
the increasing impact of Avian Influenza on the UK laying flock. Producers have felt cost increases in all
aspects of their business, encompassing feed, energy, labour, transportation and in respect of new investment
cost of materials and cost {o raise finance. These have all compounded to impact the willingness of producers
to invest in new infrastructure to house new free range or organic flocks, and with the impending move away
from caged egg by retailers this is putting pressure on the supply of egq.

The Group works closely with its producer base and is proactive in passing through price increases in
partnership with our strategic retallers to ensure our supply base has a viable business to confinue as long-
term partners to us and our retailers.

The Group holds our own farms and those of our producers to the highest standards of biosecurity to mitigate
the risk of Avian Influenza. The Group has insurance in place spedifically against the risk of our own farms
being directly impacted by Avian Influenza.

Health & Safety Risk

Employee safety remains paramount in our day-to-day activities. The Group ensures that regular, thorough
reviews of the workplace are carried out with any relevant acfions taken to provide a safe working
environment for all our employees. In addition to our own raviews the Group engages with third parties to
provide an independent review,

Cash flow Risk

The Group has in place a risk management programme that seeks fo limit the adverse sffects on the financial
performance of the Group by monitaring levels of debt finance and related finance costs. The Group does not
use derivative financial instruments to manage interest rate costs and as such, no hedge accounting is
applied,

Given the size of the Group, the director has not delegated the responsibility of monitoring financial risk
management to a sub-committee of the Senior management leam. The policies set by the Senior
management team are implemented by the Group's finance department.

The directar will revisit the appropriateness of this policy should the Group's aperations change in size or
nature.
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Principal risks and uncertainties {continued)

Credit Risk
The Group's principal financial assets are bank balances and cash, trade and cother receivables, and
investments.,

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to jts trade receivables. The amounts presented in the balance
sheet are net of allowances for doubtful receivables. An allowance for impairment is made where there is an
identified loss event which, based on previous experience, is evidence of a reduction in the recoverability of
the cash flows.

Trade debtors are managed in respect of credit and cash flow by pelicies concerning the credit offered to
customers and the regular monitoring of amounts outstanding for both time and credit fimifs.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Ligquidity Risk
In order to maintain liquidity to ensure that sufficient funds are available for ongoing operations and future
developments, the Group uses a mixture of longer-term asset finance and short-term debit finance.

Market Risk

The Group recognises the risk of competition in a highly active market. Through investment in our products,
genetics, facilities, and people we aim to meet or exceed the demands of our customers and the consumer.
Being a 100% free range and organic operation, and so having long removed curselves from caged and barn
egg production, the husiness is less at risk from consumer and retail pressure against intensive egg
production associated with lower welfare standards.

Key performance indicators

Given the straightforward nature of the Group's operations, the director is of the opinion that analysis using
KPis other than the financial results, is not necessary for an understanding of the development, performance
or position of the business.
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Health, safety and environment
The key focus of the business continues to be health, safsty, quality, and the environment.

Qur policles aim to provide and support a culture where health, safety, guality, and the environment are
consistently on our agenda. This has been achieved by ensuring that our team receive adequate training and
feel empowered to raise any concerns that they may have.

From the Food Quaiity Management System perspective, we are accredited against the British Retail
Consortium (Global Food Safety Initiative) rather than following 1ISO9001. Our current BRC grade is AA* for
shell egg and AA+ for the convenience foods sites. The scape of these acereditations is as follows:

Shell Egg

Grading and packing, of hen, goose, ostrich, pheasant, quail, duck, emu, turkey, rhea, and guinea fow] eggs.
Packing into pulp or plastic cartons. Separation of shell from eggs and harvesting the liquid for filttering and
chilling <4% for further processing.

Convenience Foods

The coaking (bciling) cooling, shelling of hen and quail's eggs, the blending of sandwich fillings, assembly of
hen and quail eggs with and without value-added components or brine inte MAP, Non-MAP, bulk buckets and
bags. The poaching, pasteurisation of egyg products packed into plastic film lidded trays. The breaking,
pasteurisation of liquid egg with and without additions pre and post pasteurisation, packed into bags, retail
cartons and pouches. The filling of Raw egg whites into bags.

Both Sites are also accredited against the BEIC (British Egg Industry Council) Lion Code, RSPCA (Royal
Society for The Prevention of Cruelty to Animals) and Organic Food Standards with both Organic Farmers and
Growers and Soll Association.

Stonegate Farmers are also member of Campden BRI Food Research Organisation and the Chilled Foods
Association,

5172 statement
This statement by the director describes how the responsibilities under 8172 (1) (a) to (f) of the Companies
Act 2006 have been approached.

The director;

» considers having acted in good faith to promote the success of the Group on behalf of the employees,

clients and suppliers of the business in relation to matters set out in s172.

« monitors and reviews strategic objectives against growth plans, and regular reviews at departmental
and senior management team level are held across the business in the key areas heing H&S,
Financial performance, Operations, Human Resources and Risks and Oppertunities.
considers H&S fundamental to the management of the business. Safe working practices that minimise
environmental impact are key to the success of the business and vitally important for our
stakeholders, the communities, and the environments we work in.
recognises and understands that it is important to keep employees informed of all matters concerning
them and does this in several ways including site notices, meetings, verbal and written
communications., The views and interests of employees are considered in consultation with them
through working groups or forums, which evolve over time to meet the needs of all parties. The policy
of the Group is to consult and discuss with employees any lssues that arise in accordance with
relevant procedures or legislation.
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The fundamental principle in the governance of the Group is the clear, fair, and trusting approach to all
interactions with employees, clients, and suppliers; this is reflected in the length of service of employees and
management teams and the longevity of the relationships with our clients and suppliers.

The Group's employees, clients and suppliers are critical to the success of the business and so it is
recognised that engagement is an important aspect in those relationships.

The Group has an equal opportunities policy and is committed to the principles within the policy in respect of
all stakeholders.

The Group has built, and continues to grow, the business on a reputation for delivering excellent customer
service. The Group, through the senior management team and employees, strives continuously to improve in
every aspect of the products and services it provides, for the mutual benefit of all stakeholders,

The director, supported by the seniar management team, has overall responsibility for delivering the Group's
strategy and values and for ensuring high standards of governance, The primary aim of the director is to
promote the long-term sustainable success of the Group to generate benefit for the stakeholders.

On behalf of the board

Mr A D Gott
Director

'),%\"s




STONEGATE FOOD GROUP LIMITED

DIRECTOR'S REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

The director presents his annual report and financial statements far the year ended 30 September 2023.

Principal activities
The principal activity of the company as the holding of investments in a trading Group.

The principal activities of the Group continued to be that of fres range and organic poultry farming for the
production of eggs along with packing, marketing and sale of free range, organic eggs and egg products.

Results and dividends
The results for the year are set out on page 15.

Ordinary dividends were paid amounting to £152,400. The directar does not recommend payment of a further
dividend.

Director
The director who held office during the year and up to the date of signature of the financlal statements was as
follows:

Mr A D Gott

Disabled persons

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the aptitudes of
the applicant concerned. In the event of members of staff becoming disabled, every effort is made to ensure
that their employment within the group continues and that the appraopriate training is aranged. It is the policy
of the group that the training, career development and promolion of disabled persons should, as far as
possible, be identical to that of other employees.

Employee involvement

The director recognises that the future success of the business is highly dependent upon the loyalty, skills and
motivation of group's employees and, therefore, encourages the supply of information on the progress of their
business unit and the group as a whole. Fmployee participation in improving the efficiency of the business is
actively sought at all levels through regular meetings. The group's policy is to consult and discuss with
employees, through unions, staff councils and at meetings, matters likely to affect employees’ interests.

information about matters of concern to employees is given through information bulletins and reports which
seek to achieve 8 common awareness on the part of all employees of the financial and economic factors
affecting the group's performance,

Future developments

The Group will continue to sirengthen the business through the development and evolution of high-quality
core products focussed on our customers' needs. investment will continue in equipment and technology at the
primary packing site and a new egg processing facility.

Auditor
The auditor, MHA Maore and Smalley, is deemed to be reappointed under section 487({2) of the Companies
Act 2008,
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Energy and carbon report

Energy consumption

Aggregate of energy consumption in the year
- Gas combustion

- Electricity purchased

- Fuel consumed for transpart

Emissions of CO2 equivalent

Scope 1 - direct emissions
- Gas combustion
- Fuel consumed for owned transport

Scope 2 - indirect emissions
- Electricity purchased
Scope 3 - other indirect emissions

- Fuel consumed for transport not owned by the group

Total gross emissions

Intensity ratio
Tonnes CO2e per 100,000 eggs sold

Quantification and reporting methodology

2023 2022

kWh kWh
3,945,349 3,606,951
5,181,010 3,941,980
16,538,762 16,917,948
25,675,121 24,466,880
2023 2022
metric metric
tonnes tonnes
1,116.00  1,020.00
4,373.00 4,473.00
5,489.00 5,493.00
67.00 71.00
5,56586.00 5,564.00
0.60 0.58

Utilities - invoices from electricity and gas suppliers were provided, with energy consumption expressed in

kilowatt haurs. Emissions were calculated using a representative average mix.

Use of fuel for transport - fuel consumption by Group owned and long-term hire vehicles is recorded by fuel
cards and bunker drawings and is expressed in litres, One litre of diesel corresponds to 2.68kg of CO2. Short

term hire vehicles are excluded.

Emissions from business travel in company cars and employee-owned vehicles — car mileage is recorded in
employee expense claims. Petrol cars are assumed to average 36mpg, diesel, 43mpg and hybrid 59mpg.
One litre of diesel corresponds to 2.68kg of CO2 and one litre of pefrol corresponds (o 2.31kgs of CO2.

Intensity measurement

The group also uses the following intensity measurement:
KWH per 100,000 eggs sold — 2,779 (2022: 2,552}
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Measures taken lo improve energy efficiency

General

Whilst the figures disclosed above show increased energy consumption compared to the prior year, this
reflects increased activity by the Group overall, and also the growth of processed egg operations. The Group
has attempted to control such increases and minimise energy consumption as outlined below.

In 2016 the Group invested in renewable energy with the introduction of solar capture at its main site in
Lacock and on one of aur own farm sites. In 2021 Solar panels have also heen installed at a further three of
aur own farm sites. This process continued in 2023 with further solar capture at its main site in Lacock in
2023.

Where electricity is required from external sources the Group buys 100% zera carbon electricity from
renewable generation,

Power saving remains a key part of our environmental strategy, from emplayee awareness and engagement
o the lype of equipment we purchase.

We monitor usage across all sites to allow us to better understand when and how power is being consumed.
Where we are purchasing new or replacement equipment, we focus on energy efficiency and sustainability.

Voltage optimisation helps protect equipment by reducing heat and vibration and allows demand to be better
managed.

Transport Fuels

The Group continue to operate a fleet of Volvo Tractar and Rigid motive units, the Rigid fleet was replaced in
2023 and replacement tractor units are due for delivery in early 2024. The Volvo tractor and Rigid units were
selected primarily for their good fuel economy and monitoring technology.

To further minimise fuel consumption the Group regularly reviews vehicle routing and utilisation, using forward
forecasts of eggs available for collection from farms to optimise load fill. The Group actively reviews load fill
and seeks to obtain back haul work to improve efficiency. Drivers are regularly monitored and assessed for
their driving style to aid fuel economy and to reduce wear & tear on vehicles. The Group employ a driver
trainer o facilitate continued driving style improvement.

The Group continues to operate a fleet of 12 Mercedes sprinter vans for customer deliveries in London and
the surrounding areas. The group is reviewing this operation with third party distributors in order to reduce the
environmaental impact of these deliveries.

Staff and visHors to the Lacock site can take advantage of charging facilities for electric cars, HGV trailers and
the current van fleet can also run box fridges on electric plug points.

Longer term, the Group are in collaboration with Volvo Head office to identify a gas or alternative fuel vehicle
that can operate effectively for Stonegate operation, The vison is to operate a fleet of gas or alternative fuel
vehicle by 2028,
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Measures taken fo improve energy efficiency (continued)

Waste

The principal objective for waste management is to minimise the production of waste. However, where waste
is created the Group ensures waste products are fully recycled where possible. The Group uses wastewater
capfure for vehigle washing.

Raw material waste is minimised through the efficient capture and processing of damaged items. Where
damaged product cannot be used for human consumption, it is collected and sold for animal consumption or
energy praduction,

In 2023 the Group started construction of on-site waste water treatment facilities at the disposa! of the Group
which when completed in 2024 will aliow all the Group’s waste water to be ireated on site and safely
discharged to the water course in compliance with Environment Agency regulations. This will have the added
benefit of removing the need for third party companies to come on site and remove waste water in tankers,
thus reducing the number of miles on the road associated with the discharge of waste water by the business.

Farming

Stonegate's farming estates comprise Group-owned and independent privately owned facilities; farms of
different size and layout, some built recently, others as much as 25 years old. All our farms operate to the
same high consumer expectation, which is to say that every animal under our umbrelia, directly or indirectly, is
expected to lead a good life, cared for by ampathetic and responsible farmers.

The RSPCA Assured and Lion Code provide the backbone of farm assurance, covering aspects of bird
welfare, traceability, food hygiene and good agricultural practice. Independent auditors assigned by these
certifying bodies inspect farms each year, and issue conformity documents to allow farms to participate in our
marketplace. 100% of Stonegate’s production is accredited to both RSPCA Assured and Lion Code of
Practice. Every hen has access to a defined outdoor area every day, and the RSPCA's five freedoms of good
animal welfare are strictly observed: freedom from hunger and thirst, discomfort, pain or disease, fear and
distress and free to express natural behaviour.

Stonegate have long served some of the nation’s most trusted and revered food retailers and, as such, go well
beyond the industry-wide thresholds for farming standards. In addition to the annual inspections, Stonegate’s
own team of qualified and experienced field staff support every farm in maintaining the highest standards,
conducting physical inspections at least every quarter and provide technical advice to ensure welfare, food
standards, environmental compliance and perfarmance are maintained. We measure a huge amount of data
from every farm and use performance benchmarking, via trade-specific software, to drive continuous
improvement and competition, sharing best practice via social media and face to face engagement.

We have continued to conduct detailed carbon foot printing on our farms, identifying the range of emissions
from the greatest contributing aspect of our total operations; egg production, defined within our Scope 3
emissions. This work has afforded us insight into the drivers of emissions in our whole supply chain and has
informed the development, launch and continued growth of cur Respectful brand of eggs.

Under the Respectful specification, imported soy is replaced with homegrown sources of protein, and in
conjunction with other features of our supply farms, has delivered 50% reductions in CO2e/kg. According to
the certifying body, Ciimate Partner GmbH, the production of eggs to the farm gate represents three quarters
of all emissions in the product lifecycle, so a 50% reduction is significant. Respectful Eggs are the UK's first
carbon neutral eggs, with the remaining batance of emissions offset through high standard carbon credits,
supporting several projects to protect the Amazon rainforest in Brazil,

Elsewhere, we have commissioned studies into animal behaviour and nutrition via both academia and trade.
We're sponsoring a PhD study at the renowned poultry behaviour faculty in Bristol University, and as part of
our ongoing response to the environmental concerns reported in the Wye & Usk catchment area, we're
researching how phosphorus in manure can be reduced through changes in dietary protein with a leading
feed manufacturer, with strong recommendations emerging.




STONEGATE FOOD GROUP LIMITED

DIRECTGR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

Strategic report

The group has chosen in accordance with Companies Act 2008, s, 414C(11) to set out in the group's strategic
report information required by Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2008, Sch. 7 to be contained in the director's report. it has done so in respect of financial risk
management objectives and policies.

Statement of disclosure to auditor

So far as each person who was a director at the date of approving this repart is aware, there is no relevant
audit infarmation of which the auditor of the company is unaware. Additionally, the directors individually have
taken all the necessary steps that they ought to have taken as directors in arder to make themselves aware of
all relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor of the company is aware of that information.

On behalf of the board

Mr AD Gott
Director
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STONEGATE FOOD GROUP LIMITED

DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

The director is responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the direcior to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
director has elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company
law the director must not approve the financial statements unless he is satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the group and company, and of the profit or loss of the group for that period. In
prepating these financial statements, the director is required to:

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

« make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- sfate whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

+ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the group and company will continue in business.

The director is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the group's and company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
positian of the group and company and epable them ta ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. He is aiso responsible for safeguarding the assets of the group and company and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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STONEGATE FOOD GROUP LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF STONEGATE FOOD GROUP LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Stonegate Faod Group Limited (the ‘parent company'} and ifs
subsidiaries (the 'group') for the year ended 30 September 2023 which comprise the group statement of
comprehensive income, the group balance sheet, the company balance sheet, the group statement of
changes in equity, the company statement of changes in equity, the group statement of cash flows and notes
to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that
has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including
Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard appiicable in the UK and Repubiic of
Irefand (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In aur opinion the financial statements:
. give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and the parent company's affairs as at 30 September
2023 and of the group's profit for the year then ended;
« have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and
« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UK) (I1SAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Audifor's responsibiliies
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report, We are independent of the group and parent
company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfiied our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We belisve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
dappropriate to provide a basis for our opinien.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the director's use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate,

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group's and parent company's
ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

Qur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the director with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. The director is respansible for the other information contained
within the annual report. Qur opinion an the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon. Qur responsibility is to read the other information and, in deoing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise fo a
material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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STONEGATE FOOD GROUP LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED}
TO THE MEMBERS OF STONEGATE FOOD GROUP LIMITED

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit;
« the information given in the strategic report and the director's report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
« the strategic report and the director's report have been prepared in accardance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and their environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or the
director's report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:
» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our
audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
+ the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
. certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit,

Responsibilities of director

As explained more fully in the director's responsibilities statement, the director is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the director determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the financia! staterments, the
director is responsibie for assessing the parent company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concemn and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
director either intends to liguidate the parent company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
apinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accardance with ISAs {UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of
irregularities, including fraud. The specific procedures for this engagement and the extent to which these are
capable of delecting irregularities, including fraud, are detailed below:

+ Enguiries with management about any known or suspected instances of non-compliance with laws
and regulations;

« Enquires with management about any known or suspected instances of fraud;

- Review of minutes of meelings of management;

» Examination of journal entries and other adjustments to test for appropriateness and identify any
instances of management averride of controls;

« Review of legal and professional expenditure to identify any evidence of ongoing litigation or

enquiries;

Auditing the risk of fraud in revenue, including through the testing of income cut off at the period end

and through sales transaction testing to provide comfort that revenue is completely stated in the

financial statements.

.
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STONEGATE FOOD GROUP LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF STONEGATE FOOD GROUP LIMITED

We identified the following areas as those most likely to have a material impact on the financial statements:
employment law, health and safety legislation, food hygiene and safety regulations, and compliance with the
UK Companies Act.

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that some material misstatements in
the financial statements may not be detected, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in
accordance with the ISAs (UK). For instance, the further removed non-compliance is from the events and
transactions reflected in the financial statements, the tess likely the auditor is to become aware of it or to
recognize the non-compliance.

A further description of our responsibilities is available on the Financial Reporting Council's website at: hitps://
www. frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006. Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permilted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Joe Sullivan
Senior Statutory Auditor
For and on behalf of MHA Moore and Smalley

Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditor

Richard House

9 Winckley Square
Preston

PR1 3HP
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STONEGATE FOOD GROUP LIMITED

GROUP STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

Notes
Turnover 4
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Administrative expenses
Other operating income
Operating profit 5
Interest receivable and similar income 8
Interest payable and similar expenses 10
Amounts written off investments 9
Profit before taxation
Tax on profit 11

Profit for the financial year

Other comprehensive income

Actuarial (loss)gain on defined benefit pension
schemes

Tax relating to other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

2023
£

195,615,770
(165,537,225)

30,078,545

(25,582,582)
303,269

4,799,232
56,187
(462,151)
(6,540)
4,386,728
(1,160,998)

3,225,730

(272,000)
59,840

3,013,570

Profit for the financial year is all attributable to the owner of the parent company.

Total comprehensive income for the year is all attributable to the owner of the parent company.

2022
as restated
£

158,817,199
(135,924,699)

22,892,500

(22,368,481)
478,212

1,004,231
967

(416,296)
588,902

(85,866)

503,036

945,000
(179,550)

1,268,486

The statement of comprehensive income has been prepared on the basis that all operations are continuing

aperations.

-15 -



STONEGATE FOOD GROUP LIMITED

GROUP BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2023
30 September 2023 1 October 2022
Notes £ £ £ £
Fixed assets
Goodwill 14 228,483 283,318
Other intangible assets 14 44,691 79,975
Total intangible assets 273,174 363,284
Tangible assets 15 15,297,965 15,047,437
Investment property 16 500,000 500,000
Invastments 17 - 6,069
16,071,139 15,816,800
Current assets
Stocks 20 5,215,687 5,058,897
Debtors 21 27,658,432 24,601,943
Investments 22 - 471
Cash at bank and in hand 510,530 353,576
33,384,649 30,015,887
Creditors: amaunts falling due within
one year 23 (30,541,792) (31,485,242)
Net current assets/{liabilities) 2,842,857 (1,469,355)
Total assets less current liahilities 18,913,996 14,447,445
Creditors: amounts falling due after
more than one year 26 (4,274,354) (3,711,187
Provisions for liabilities
Deferred tax liability 27 2,298,453 1,256,238
e (2,208,458) —————  (1,256,239)
Net assets 12,341,189 9,480,019
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 29 50 50
Profit and loss reserves 12,341,139 9,479,968

Total equity 12,341,189 9,480,019

The f'\ne\ncia! statements were approved and signed by the director and authorised for issue on

LRl %’}\.‘r

Mr A D Gott
Director

Company registration number 11153598 (England and Wales)
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STONEGATE FOOD GROUP LIMITED

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

Notes
Fixed assets
Investments 17
Current assets
Debtors 21
Creditors: amounts falling due within
one year 23

Net current liahilities

Net assets

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital 29

Profit and loss reserves

Total equity

30 September 2023 1 October 2022
£ £ £ £

31,700,000 31,700,000

554,667 554,667

(26,597,557) (26,597,557)

(26,042,890) (26,042,890)

5,657,110 5,667,110

50 50
5,657,060 5,657,060
5,657,110 5657110

As permitted by s408 Companies Act 2006, the company has not presented its own profit and loss account
and related notes. The company's profit for the year was £152,400 (2022 - £152,400 profit).

The tnincial statements were approved and signed by the director and authorised for issue on

Mr AD Gott
Director

Company registration number 11153598 (England and Wales)
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STONEGATE FOOD GROUP LIMITED

GROUP STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

Balance at 3 October 2021

Year ended 1 October 2022:

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Actuarial gains on defined benefit plans

Tax relating to other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income
Dividends

Balance at 1 October 2022

Year ended 30 September 2023:

Prcfit for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Actuarial gains on defined henefit plans

Tax relating to other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income
Dividends

Balance at 30 September 2023

Notes

12

12

Share Profit and Total
capital loss
reserves
£ £ £
50 8,363,883 8,363,933
- 503,036 503,036
- 545,000 945,000
- {179,550y (179,550)
- 1,268,486 1,268,486
- {152,400) (152,400)
50 9,479,969 9,480,019
- 3,225,730 3,225,730
- {272,000) (272,000)
- 59,840 59,840
- 3,013,570 3,013,570
- (152,400) (152,400)
50 12,341,139 12,341,189
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STONEGATE FOOD GROUP LIMITED

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEFTEMBER 2023

Balance at 3 October 2021

Year ended 1 October 2022;

Profit and total comprehensive income far the year
Dividends

Balance at 1 October 2022

Year ended 30 September 2023:

Profit and total comprehensive income

Dividends

Balance at 30 September 2023

Notes

12

12

Share Profit and Total
capital loss
reserves
£ £ £
50 5,657,060 5,657,110
- 152,400 152,400
- (152,400) (152,400)
50 5657060 5,657,110
- 152,400 152,400
- (152,400)  (152,400) \
50 5,657,060 5,657,110
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STONEGATE FOOD GROUP LIMITED

GROUP STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

Notes

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from/(absorbed by) 36
operations

interest paid

Income taxes refunded/(paid)

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating
activities

Investing activities

Furchase of tangible fixed assets
Proceeds on disposal of tangible fixed
assets

Repayment of loan/{loans made)
Interest received

Net cash {used in)/generated from
investing activities

Financing activities
(Decrease)fincrease in other loans
Payment of finance leases obligations
Dividends paid to equity shareholders

Net cash {used in)/generated from
financing activities

Net increasel/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

2023
£ £
8,773,478
(462,151)
51,534
8,362,861
(1,169.440)
15,950
1,187
(1,152,303)
(5,501,980)
(1,399,224)
(152,400)
(7,053,604)
156,954
353,576
510,530

2022
£ £
(5.457,433)
(391,296)
(5,848,729)
(1,167,026)
8,000
1,250,000
967
91,041
6,715,524
(1,502,027)
(152,400)
5,061,097
(695,691)
1,049,267
353,576
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STONEGATE FOOD GROQUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEFTEMBER 2023

1.1

Accounting policies

Company information

Stonegate Food Group Limited (“the company”) is a private limited company domiciled and incorporated
in England and Wales. The registerad office is Lacock Green, Corsham Road, Lacock, Chippenham,
SN15 2LZ,

The group consists of Stonegate Food Group Limited and all of its subsidiaries.

Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Irefand” ("FRS 102"} and the requiremenis of the
Companies Act 20086.

The financial statements are prepared in sterding, which is the functional currency of the company.
Monetary amounts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest £.

The financial statements have heen prepared under the historical cost convention, modified to include
investment properties at fair value. The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.

The company is a qualifying entity for the purposes of FRS 102, being a member of a group where the
parent of that group prepares publicly available consolidated financial statements, including this
company, which are intended to give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and
profit or loss of the group. The company has therefore taken advantage of exempticns from the fallowing
disclosure requirements for parent company information presenied within the consolidated financial
statements:

Section 4 'Statement of Financial Position': Reconciliation of the opening and closing number of
shares;

Section 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows": Presentation of a statement of cash flow and related notes
and disclosures;

Section 11 ‘Basic Financial Instruments' and Section 12 ‘Other Financial Instrument lssues™
Carrying amounts, inferest income/expense and net gainsfiosses for each category of financia!
instrument; basis of determining fair values; details of collateral, loan defaults or breaches,
details of hedges, hedging fair value changes recognised in profit or loss and in other
comprehensive income;

« Section 33 'Related Parly Disclosures’: Compensation for key management personnel.

.

-
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STONEGATE FOOD GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

1.2

1.3

Accounting policies {Continued)

Business combinations

In the parent company financial statements, the cost of a business combination is the fair value at the
acquisition date of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liahilities incurred or assumed, plus
costs directly attributable to the business combination, except in the case of a group reconstruction,

The company was incorporated on 16 January 2018, and acquired Gott Agri Synergy Limited and its
subsidiaries on 18 December 2018 as part of a demerger process. The introduction of a new holding
company constituted a group reconstruction and has been accounted for using merger accounting
principles. Therefore, although the group reconstruction did not became effective until 18 December
2018, the consolidated financial statements are presented as if Stonegate Food Group Limited had
always baeen part of the same group.

The excess of the cost of a business combination over the fair value of the identifiable assets, liahilities
and contingent liabilities acquired is recognised as goodwill. The excess of the fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabllities and contingent liabilities acquired over the cost of a business combination is
recognised as negative goodwill.

The cost of the combination includes the estimated amount of contingent consideration that is probable
and can be measured reliably, and is adjusted for changes in contingent consideration after the
acquisition date, Provisional fair values recognised for business combinations in previous periods are
adjusted retraspeciively for final fair values determined in the 12 months following the acquisition date.
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate those of Stonegate Food Group Limited and all of its
subsidiaries (i.e. entities that the group controls through its power to govern the financial and operating
policies so as to obtain economic benefits). Subsidiaries acquired during the year are consclidated
using the purchase method. Their results are incorporated from the date that control passes.

All financial statements are made up to 30 September 2023. Whare necessary, adjustments are made to
the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line with those used by
other members of the group.

All intra-group fransactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated on consalidation. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
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STONEGATE FOOD GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

1.4

1.5

1.6

Accounting policies {Continued)

Going concern

Inflationary pressures from the impact of political instability and regional conflicts had a significant
impact on many businesses in 2022-23 with food producers no less severely impacted than other
sectors. The director believes that the group is well placed to minimise any impact,

Management are continuously assessing the impact of inflationary pressures on customers and the
supply chain with regular contact taking place throughout the supply chain to minimise any disruption.
Where forward positions have been taken the group is protected from that cover in the short to medium
term. Costs that are exposed fo the current market volatility are being managed pro-actively through
sympathetic engagement with our strategic suppliers and customers. The group remains confident of
its ability to appropriately manage the short ta medium term volatility being generated by these risks.
Actions have also been taken in the past to enable the business to establish a strong financial platfarm,
and this together with the current balance sheet strength positions the group well. Cash flow projections
have been prepared for the group to cover at least twelve months following the approval of the financial
statements, which indicate that the group will generate sufficient resources to meet their obligations as
they fall due.

After considering the impact of the above, at the time of approving the financial statements, the director
has a reasonable expectation that the group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future. Thus the director continues to adopt the going congcern basis of
accounting in preparing the financial statements.

Turnover

Turnover is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of eggs
and related produce provided in the normal course of business, and is shown net of VAT. The fair value
of consideration takes into account trade discounts, settlement discounts and volume rebates.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of cwnership of the
goods have passed to the buyer (usually on dispatch of the goods), the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to
the entity and the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Intangible fixed assets - goodwill

Goodwill represents the axcess of the cost of acquisition of a business over the fair value of net assets
acquired. It is initially recognised as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment (osses. Goodwill is considered to have a finite
useful life and is amortised on a systematic basis over its expected life, which is 10 years.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the cash-generating units expected to
benefit from the acquisition. Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for
impairment at least annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. if the recoverable amouni of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the
unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit.

Negative goodwill represents the difference between the cost of acquisition of a business and the fair
value of the new assets acquired. it is initially recognised as a negative asset at cost and is
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Negative goodwill is considered to have a finite useful life and is amortised on a systematic basis over its
expected useful life, which is 10 years.
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STONEGATE FOOD GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

1.7

1.4

1.9

1.10

Accounting policies {Continued)

Intangible fixed assets other than goodwill
Intangible assets acquired separately from a business are recognised at cost and are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual values over their useful
lives on the following bases:

Software 20% to 33% per annum

Tangihle fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost, net of
depreciation and any impairment losses.

Once assets are brought into use, depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less
their residual values over their useful lives on the following bases:

Freehold land and buildings 2% per annum

Plant and equipment 5% - 33% per annum
Fixtures and fitlings 5% per annum

Motor vehicles 17% - 25% per annum

Assets in the course of construction are not depreciated.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale
proceeds and the carrying value of the asset, and is recognised in the profit and joss account.

Investment property

Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals and/er far capital appreciation, is initially
recognised at cost, which includes the purchase cost and any directly atfributable expenditure.
Subsequently it is measured at fair value at the reporting end date. The surplus or deficit on revaluation
is recagnised in the profit or loss account.

Fixed asset investments

Equity investments are measured at fair value through profit or loss, except for those equity investments
that are not publicly traded and whose fair value cannot otherwise be measured reliably, which are
recognised at cost less impairment untif a reliable measure of fair value becomes available.

In the parent company financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are initially measured al cost
and subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the group. Control is the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of the entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
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STONEGATE FOOD GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

1.12

1.13

1.14

Accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment of fixed assets

At each reporting period end date, the group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverabie amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss {if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the ¢ash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs,

The carrying amount of the investments accounted for using the equity method is tested for impairment
as a single asset. Any goodwill included in the carrying amount of the investment is not tested
saparately for impairmeant.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset {or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Recognised impairment losses are reversed if, and only if, the reasons for the impairment loss have
ceased to apply. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset {or
cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amaunt does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years, A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and estimated selling price less costs to complete and sell. Cost
comprises direct materials and, where applicable, costs incurred in bringing the stocks to their present
location and condition.

At each reporting date, an assessment is made for impairment. Any excess of the carrying amount of
stocks over its estimated selling price less costs to complete and sefll is recognised as an impairment
loss in profit or loss. Reversals of impairment losses are also recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and in hand are basic financiat assets and include cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities.

Financial instruments
The group has elected to apply the provisions of Section 11 ‘Basic Financial instruments’ and Section 12
‘Other Financial Instruments Issues’ of FRS 102 to all of its financial instruments.

Financial instrumants are recognised in the group's balance sheet when the group becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and liabilities ara offset and the net amounts presented in the financial statements when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liahility simultaneously.
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1 Accounting policies {Continued)

Basfc financial assets

Basic financial assets, which include debtors and cash and bank balances, are initially measured at
transaction price including transaction costs and are subsequently carried al amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the
transaction is measured at the present value of the fulure receipts discounted at a market rate of
interest. Financial assets classified as receivable within one year are not amortised.

Other financial assets

Other financial assets, including investments in equity instruments which are nat subsidiaries, associates
or joint ventures, are initially measured at fair value, which is normally the transaction price. Such assets
are subsequently carried at fair value and the changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss,
except that investments in equity instruments that are not publicly traded and whose fair values cannot
be measured reliably are measured at cost less impairment.

Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets, other than those held at fair value through profit and loss, are assessed for indicators
of impairment at each reporting end date.

Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recagnition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows have been
affected. If an asset is impaired, the impairment loss is the difference between the carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate.
The impairment [os5 i recognised in profit or loss.

if there is a decrease in the impairment loss arising from an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the impairment is reversed. The reversal is such that the current carrying amount does not
exceed what the carrying amount would have been, had the impairment not previously been recognised.
The impairment reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
axpire or are settled, or when the group transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to another entity, or if some significant risks and rewards of ownership are relained
but control of the asset has transferred to another party that is able to sell the asset in its entirety to an
unrelated third party.

Classification of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities.
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1.15

1.16

Accounting policies {Continued)

Basic financial liabilities

Basic financial liabilities, including creditors and other borrowings are initially recognised at transaction
price unless the arrangement conslitutes a financing transaction, where the debt instrument is measured
at the present value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest. Financial liabilities
classified as payable within one year are not amortised.

Debt instruments are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective interast rate method.

Trade creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Amounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within cne year or less. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade creditors are
recognised initially at transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
intgrest method.

Other financiai liabilitles
All of the graup's liabilities are basic financial instruments.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the group's contractual obligations expire or are discharged
or cancelled.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the group are recorded at the proceeds received, net of transaction costs.
Dividends payable on equily instruments are recognised as liabilities once they are no longer at the
discretion of the group.

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported in the profit and loss account because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting end date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all timing differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that they will be recovered against the reversal of deferred tax
liabilities or other future taxable profits. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the timing
difference arises from goodwill or frora the initial recognition of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the tax prafit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting end dats and reduced to the
extent that it is nc longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the profit and loss account, except
when it relates to items charged or credited directly 10 equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt
with in equity. Deferred tax assels and liabilities are offset if, and oniy if, there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and the defetred tax assets and liabilities refate to taxes
levied by the same tax authority.
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED}
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

1.17

1.18

1.18

1.20

Accounting policies {Continued)

Employee benefits
The costs of short-lerm employee benefits are recognised as a liability and an expense. The cost of any
unused holiday entitlement is recognised in the period in which the employee’s services are received.

Termination benefits are recognised immediately as an expense when the company is demonstrably
committed to terminate the employment of an employee or to provide termination benefils.

Retirement benefits
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they fall
due.

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessees. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets at the lower of the assets fair value at the
date of inception and the present value of the minimum lease payrnents. The related liability is included
in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are treated as consisting of capital
and interest elements, The interest is charged to the profit or loss account so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Rentals payable under cperating leases, including any lease incentives received, are charged to the
profit or loss account on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease except where another
more systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased asset are consumed.

Foreign exchange

Transactions in currencies other than pounds sterling are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. At each reporting end date, monetary assets and labilities that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the reporling end date.
Gains and losses arising on franslation in the period are included in profit or loss.

Change in accounting policy

The director has reviewed the categorisation of expenditure, and has decided to reclassify certain
amounts to better refiect the activities of the group. The comparative figures have been restated to
reflect this reclassification of costs, resulting in an increase in cost of sales of £8,243,056, a reduction in
distribution costs of £2,537,127, and a reduction in administrative expenses of £6,705,929. There is no
other effect on the figures previously reported.
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3 Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the group's accounting policies, the director is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an angoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised where the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods where the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Critical judgements
The following judgements (apart from those involving estimates) have had the mast significant effect on
amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Impairment of trade debtors

At each balance sheet date, management undertake an assessment of the recoverability of trade
debtors based upon their knowledge of the customers, ageing of the balances outstanding and previous
write off history. Where necessary, an impairment is recorded as a doubtful debt.

The actual level of debi collected may differ from the estimated level of recovery.

Impairment of fixed assets

At each balance sheet date, management undertake an assessment of the carrying vaiue of the tangible
fixed assets to determine whether there is any indication that the value has been impaired. Where
necessary, an impairment is recorded as an impairment loss.

Goodwill

At each balance sheet date after initial recognition, the parent shall, in the consolidated financia!
statements, measure both positive and negative goodwill acquired in a business combination at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
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3 Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty {Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The estimates and assumptions which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities are as follows.

Accruals and provisions

At each balance sheet date, management undertake an assessment of the costs which have not yet
been invoiced based upon their contractual arrangements and include appropriate pravisions for these
costs.

Pension and other post-employment benefits

The graup has an obligation to pay pension benefits to certain employess. The cost of these benefits
and the present vaiue of the obligation depend upon a number of factors, including; Life expectancy,
salary increases, asset valuations and inflation.

The director estimates these factors in determining the pension obligation at the balance sheet date. The
assumptions reflect historic experience and current trends. Refer to the notes to the financial statements
for disclosures relating to the defined benefit pension schemes.

In order to assist in adhering to the criteria of FRS102, section 28 'Employee benefits', the director uses
the services of an independent external Actuary, who possess all relevant professional qualifications to
deliver the calculations of the defined benefit schemes’ balance as at the reporting date.

The director believes that this approach minimises any estimation uncertainty to an acceptable level.
4 Turnover and other revenue

An analysis of the group's turnover is as follows:

2023 2022
£ £
Turnover analysed by class of business
Attributable to the principal activity 195,615,770 158,817,189
2023 2022
£ £
Turnover analysed by geographical market
United Kingdom 195,615,770 158,817,199
2023 2022
£ £
Other revenue
Interest income 56,187 967
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5 Operating profit

2023 2022
£ £
QOperating profit for the year is stated after charging/{crediting):
Depreciation of owned tangible fixed assets 1,210,312 851,143
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets held under finance leases 1,150,703 884,295
Impairmeant of owned tangible fixed assets 659,391 -
Loss/(profit) on disposal of tangible fixed assets 2,679 (8,000)
Amortisation of intangible assets 90,120 90,120
Operating lease charges 2,429,223 2,670,207
6 Auditor's remuneration
2023 2022
Fees payable to the company's auditor and associates: £ £
For audit services
Audit of the financial staterments of the group and company 5,550 4,850
Audit of the financial statements of the company's subsidiaries 42 750 37,300
48,300 42,150
For other services
Taxation compliance services 10,300 9,650
Other taxation services 16,890 7,850
All other non-audit services 4,475 4,150
31,665 21,550

7 Employees

The average monthly number of persons (including directors) employed by the group and company
during the year was:

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
Number Number Number Number
Production 345 277 - -
Sales and distribution 144 106 - -
Administration 77 73 - -
Total 566 456 - -
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7 Employees

Their aggregate remuneration comprised;

{Continued)

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
£ £ £ £
Wages and salaries 21,568,096 17,179,090 - -
Social security costs 1,727,567 1,447,941 - -
Penslon costs 407,601 356,335 - -
23,703,264 18,983,366 - -
8 Interest receivable and similar income
2023 2022
£ £
Interest income
Interest on the net defined benefit asset 55,000 -
Other interest income 1,187 967
Total income 56,187 957
9 Amounis written off investments
2023 2022
£ £
Other gains and losses (6,540) -
10  Interest payable and similar expenses
2023 2022
£ £
Interest on bank overdrafts and loans 48,819 61,776
Other interest on financial liabilities 218,547 173,607
Interest on finance leases and hire purchase contracts 194,785 155,913
Net interest on the net defined benefit balance - 25,000
Total finance costs 462,151 416,296
11 Taxation
2023 2022
£ £
Current tax
UK corporation tax on profits for the current period 110,478 -
Adjustments in respecl of prior periods {51,534} -
Total current tax 58,944 -
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11

Taxation {Continued)
2023 2022
£ £
Deferred tax
QOrigination and reversal of timing differences 1,075,024 85,146
Changes in tax rates 147,248 26,889
Adjustment in respect of prior periods (120,218} (26,169)
Total deferred tax 1,102,054 85,866
Total tax charge 1,160,998 85,866

The actual charge faor the year can be reconciled to the expected charge for the year based on the profit
or foss and the standard rate of tax as follows:

2023 2022
£ £

Profit before taxation 4,386,728 588,902

Expected tax charge based on the standard rate of corporation tax in the

UK of 22.00% (2022: 19.00%) 965,080 111,891

Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 247,479 61,305

Adjustments in respect of prior years {51,534) -
Effect of change in corporation tax rate 147,248 26,889

Other permanent differences (27,057) {88,050)
Deferred tax adjustments in respect of prior years (120,218) {26,169)
Taxation charge 1,160,998 85,866

In addition to the amount charged to the profit and loss account, the following amounts relating to tax
have been recognised directly in other comprehensive income:

2023 2022
£ £

Deferred tax arising on:
Actuarial differences recognised as other comprehensive income {59,840) 179,550
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1

12

13

14

Taxation (Continued)

Factors affecting future tax and charges

in March 2021 the Chancellor confirmed, in the budget, an increase in the corporation tax rate from 19%
to 25%. The Finance Bill 2021 had Its third reading on 24 May 2021 and became substantively
enacted. There were announcements to the contrary in the mini-budget of October 2022, but these
announcements have since been reversed and so the new rate of 25% remains substantively
enacted. Therefore, the timing differences expected to reverse on or after 1 April 2023 have been
accounted for at 25% and therefore deferred tax has been provided for at 25% (2022: 25%).

Dividends

2023 2022
Recognised as distributions to equity holders: £ £
Final paid 152,400 152,400

Impairments

impairment tests have been carried out where appropriate and the following impairment losses have
been recognised in profit or loss:

2023 2022

Notes £ £
In respect of:
Property, plant and equipment 15 659,391 -
Fixed asset investments 17 6,540 -
Recognised in;
Cost of sales 659,391 -
Amounts written off investments 6,540 -
intangible fixed assets
Group Positive Negative Software Total

goodwill goodwill

£ £ £ £
Cost
At 2 October 2022 and 30 September 2023 548,360 (6,017,125) 180,013 (5,278,756}
Amortisation and impairment
At 2 October 2022 265,041 (6,017,129) 110,038 (5,642,050)
Amortisation charged for the year 54,836 - 35,284 90,120
At 30 September 2023 319,877 (6,017,129 145,322 (5,551,930}
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14

15

Intangible fixed assets

Carrying amount
At 30 September 2023

At 1 October 2022

Tangible fixed assets

Group

Cost

At 2 October 2022
Additions
Disposals
Transfers

At 30 September 2023

Depreciation and
impairment

At 2 October 2022
Depreciation charged in
the year

Impairment losses
Eliminated in respect of
disposals

At 30 September 2023

Carrying amount
At 30 September 2023

{Continued)

228,483 - 44,691 273,174
283,319 - 79,975 363,294
The company had no intangible fixed assets at 30 September 2023 or 1 October 2022,
Freehold land Assets under Plant and Fixtures and Motor Total
and buildings construction equipment fittings vohlcles

£ £ £ £ £ £

1,311,362 135,146 19,811,921 295,681 364,658 22,018,768

- - 1,102,699 - 2,186,664 3,289,563
. - {30,950) - (18.498)  (49,448)

- {135,146) 135,146 - - -

1,311,362 - 21,119,116 295,681 2,532,724 25,258,883
471,153 - 5,218,952 22,269 258,457 6,971,331
20,150 - 2,055 115 14,784 270,966 2,361,015
659,391 - - - - 659,391
- - (12,321) - (18,498)  (30,819)

1,150,694 - 8,261,746 37,053 511,425 9,960,918
160,668 - 12,857,370 288,628 2,021,299 15,287,965
840,209 135,146 13,692,969 273,412 105,701 15,047 437

At 1 October 2022

The company had no tangible fixed assets at 30 September 2023 or 1 October 2022,
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15 Tangible fixed assets (Continued)

The net carrying value of tangible fixed assets includes the following in respect of assets held under
finance leases or hire purchase contracts.

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
£ £ £ £
Plant and equipment 5,736,539 6,655,250 - -
Motor vehicles 1,960,908 11,835 - -

7,697,447 6,667,085 - -

16 Investment property
Group Company

2023 2023
£ £

Fair value
At 2 Qctober 2022 and 30 September 2023 500,000 -

The fair value of the investment property has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out at
30 September 2016 by Savills {(UK) Limited Chartered Surveyors, who are nol connected with the
company. The vaiuation was made on a fair value basis.

At the year end, the director has reviewed the valuation, and believes that the valuation of the property
in the accounts is a fair reflection of its current worth.

17 Fixed asset investments

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
Notes £ £ £ £
Investments in subsidiaries 18 - - 31,700,000 31,700,000
Unlisted investments - 6,069 - -

- 6,069 31,700,000 31,700,000
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17

18

Fixed asset investments

Movements in fixed asset investments
Group

Cost
At 2 Octaber 2022
Disposals

At 30 Septembar 2023

Carrying amount
At 30 September 2023

At 1 October 2022

Movements in fixed asset investments
Company

Cost
At 2 October 2022 and 30 September 2023

Carrying amount
At 30 September 2023

At 1 October 2022

Subsidiaries

Details of the company's subsidiaries at 30 September 2023 ara as follows:

Name of undertaking

Clarence Court Eggs Limited

Stonegate Agriculture Limited

Stonegate Farmers Limited

Thames Valley Eggs {Production) Limited
CC PR Lid

Address Class of

shares held

Qrdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

[N G

Registered office addresses (all UK unless otherwise indicated):

1 Lacock Green, Corsham Road, Lacock, Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN15 2LZ

(Continued)

Investments
£

6,069
(6,069)

6,069

Shares in
subsidiaries
£

31,700,000

31,700,000

31,700,000

% Held
Direct Indirect

100.00 -
- 100.00
1G0.0C
- 100.00
100.00
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19

20

21

22

Financial instruments

Carrying amount of financial assefs
instruments measured at fair value through
profit or loss

Stocks

Eggs, egg products and packaging
Livestock
Feed and raw materials

Debtors

Amounts falling due within one year:

Trade debtors

Amounts owed by group undertakings
Other debtors

Prepayments and accrued income

Amounts falling due after more than one year:

Prepayments and accrued income

Total debtors

Current asset investments

Unilisted investments

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
£ £ £ £
- 471 - -
Group Campany
2023 2022 2023 2022
£ £ £ £
2,432,017 2,137,031 - -
2,156,927 2,034,548 - -
626,743 888,318 - -
5,215,687 5,059,897 - -
Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
£ £ £ £
20,043,727 19,553,047 - -
- - 58,800 58,800
2,603,220 1,732,337 495,867 495,867
5,111,485 1,815,118 - -
27,658,432 23,100,502 554,667 554,667
- 1,501,441 - -
27,658,432 24,601,943 554,667 554,667
Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
£ £ £ £
- 471 - “
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23

24

25

Craditors: amounts falling due within one year

Obligations under finance leases
Other loans

Trade creditors

Amounts owed to group undertakings
Corporation tax payable

Other taxation and social security
Other craditors

Accruals and deferred income

Loans and overdrafts

QOther loans

Payable within one year

Notes

25
24

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
£ £ £ £
1,484,302 1,326,570 - -
6,241,320 11,743,300 - -
12,585,934 11,721,273 - -
- - 286,597,557 26,597,557
110,478 - - -
403,286 A22 197 - -
281,428 160,071 - -
9,345,044 6,111,831 - -
30,541,792 31,485,242 26,597 557 26,697,557
Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
£ £ £ £
6,241,320 11,743,300 - -
6,241,320 11,743,300 - -

The group meets its day-to-day working capital requirements through an invoice discounting facility
{shown as other loans above), which is secured by a debenture over the assets of certain group
companies. The invoice discounting facility is repayable on demand.

Finance lease obligations

Future minimum lease payments due under

finance leases:
Within one year

In two to five years
In over five years

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
£ £ £ £
1,487,302 1,326,570 - -
4,271,354 3,653,055 - -
- 52,132 - .
5,758,656 5,037,757 - -

Finance lease payments represent rentals payable by group for certain items of plant and machinery
held under hire purchase. Leases include purchase options at the end of the lease period, and no
restrictions are placed on the use of the assets. The average lease term is 5 years. All leases are on a
fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments. The
creditor is secured on the assets to which it relates.
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26

27

28

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
Notes £ £ £ £
Obligations under finance leases 25 4,274,354 3,711,187 - -

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset whare the group or company has a legally enforceable right
to do so. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances {after offset) for financial reporting
purposes;

Liabilities Liabilities

2023 2022
Group £ £
Accelerated capital allowances 2,314,033 1,793,458
Tax losses - {531,256)
Short term timing differences (15,580} (5,963)

2,288,453 1,256,239

The company has nc deferred tax assets or liabilities,

Group Company

2023 2023
Movements in the year: £ £
Liability at 2 October 2022 1,256,239 -
Charge to profit or loss 1,102,054 -
Credit to other comprehensive income (59,840) -
Liability at 30 September 2023 2,298,453 -

As at the signing date of these financial statements, the group has not finalised its capital expenditure
pregramme for the forthcoming year, and therefore an assessment as to the fikely movement of other
related timing differences cannot be made.

Retirement benefit schemes

2023 2022
Defined contribution schemes £ £
Charge to profit or loss in respect of defined contribution schemes 407,801 356,335
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28

Retirement benefit schemes (Continued)

Two of the companies in the group operate a defined contribution pension scheme for all qualifying
employees. The assets of the scheme are hald separately from those of the group in an independently
administered fund.

Further analysis for each scheme is provided below.
The company had no defined contribution scheme in the year ended 30 September 2023.

Defined bhenefit schemes

Stonegate Farmers Limited operates pension arrangements providing benefits based on final pensicnable
salary for its employees. There are two partly funded defined benefit schemes for which Stonegate
Farmers Limited is responsible: the Stonegate Farmers Limited Scheme and the Thames Valley Eggs
Limited Scheme. The assets in each of the schemes are held separately from those of the companies,
being invested by professional investment managers.

The group has not recognised a pension scheme asset at the balance sheet date as it cannot demonstrats
that it would likely benefit from either qualifying criteria as stated in FRS102 section 28.22, namely that it
cannot recover the surplus either through reduced future contributions or through refunds from the defined
pension plan. As a consequence a restriction on the scheme surplus of £410,000 has been recognised for
the Stonegate Farmers Limited Scheme, and a restriction on the scheme surplus of £833,000 has been
recognised for the Thames Valley Eggs Limited Scheme, such that each scheme surplus is recognised at
a balance of £Nil within the balance sheet at 30 September 2023.

The total net pension liability at the year end is £nil (2022: £nil). This comprises a net liability of £nil (2022:
£nil) far the Stonegate Farmers Limited Scheme and a net liability of £nil (2622: £nil) for the Thames Valley
Eggs Limited Scheme. Further analysis for each scheme is provided below.

Stonegate Farmers Limited Scheme
The Stonegate Farmers Limited Scheme was paid up with no further accrual of future benefits with effect
from 30 September 2001.

An actuarial valuation of Stonegate Farmers Limited Scheme as at 1 October 2019 showed a funding
shortfall of £472,000. To eliminate the shortfall the Trustees and the Employer agreed:

Annual contributions of £222,000 per annum from 1 Qctober 2019 to 30 September 2020,
Annual contributions of £65,000 per annum from 1 October 2020 to 31 March 2024.

The last actuarial valuation of the Stonegate Farmers Limited Scheme was as at 1 October 2022, The
report has been updated to take accounts of the requirements of FRS 102 in order 1o assess the scheme
deficit at 30 September 2023.
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28 Retirement benefit schemes {Continued)

Thames Valley Eggs Limited Scheme
The Thames Valley Eggs Limited Scheme was paid up with no further accrual of future benefits with effect
from 1 October 2008.

An actuarial valuation of the Thames Valley Eggs Limited Scheme as at 1 October 2018 showed a funding
shortfall of £1.008 million. To eliminate the shortfall the Trusteas and the Employer agreed:

Annual contributions of £225,000 per annum from 1 October 2019 to 30 September 2020,
Annual contributions of £162,000 per annum from 1 October 2020 to 31 March 2025.

The last actuarial valuation of the Thames Valley Eggs Limited Scheme was as at 1 October 2022, The

report has been updated to take accounts of the requirements of FRS 102 in order to assess the scheme
deficit at 30 September 2023,

In respect of the Stonegate Farmers Limited Scheme the major assumptions used by the actuary for

FRS102 purposes were:

2023 2022
Key assumptions % %
Discount rate 5.40 5.70
Expected rate of increase of pensions in payment 5.00 5.00
1 Intflation 3.20 3.50
Expected return on plan assets 5.70 2.20
Mortality assumplions 2023 2022
Assumed fife expectations on retirement at age 65: Years Years
Retiring today
- Males 2186 21.6
- Females 237 237

2023 2022
Amoaunts recognised in the profit and loss account £ £
Net interest on defined benefit liability/{asset) {20,000} 21,000

2023 2022
Amounts taken to other comprehensive income £ £
Return on scheme assels excluding interest income (116,000) 418,000
Actuarial changes related to obligations 132,000 {1,681,000)
Effect of changes in the amount of surplus that is not recoverable 59,000 351,000
Total costs/(income) 75,000  (914,000)

In respect of the Thames Valley Eggs Limited Scheme the major assumptions used by the actuary for
FRS102 purposes were.
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2023 2022
Key assumptions % %
Discount rate 5.40 540
Expected rate of increase of pensions in payment 3.00/3.20 3.00/3.50
CPI Inflaticn 3.20 3.50
Expected return on plan assets 5.40 2.20
Mortality assumptions 2023 2022
Assumed life expectations on retirement at age 65: Years Years
Retiring today
- Males 216 21.6
- Females 23.7 23.7
2023 2022
Amounts recognised in the profit and loss account £ £
Net inlerest on defined benefit liability/{asset) {35,000) 4,000
2023 2022
Amounts taken to other comprehensive income £ £
Return on scheme assets excluding interest income (13,000 572,000
Actuarial changes related to obligations 21,000 (1,247,000}
Effect of changes in the amount of surplus that is not recoverable 189,000 644,000
Total costs/(income) 197,000 (31,000)
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{Continued)

The amounts included in the balance sheet arising from obligations in respect of defined benefit plans are

Thames Group TotalGroup Total

Valley
Eggs
Limited
20623 2023 2022
£ £ £

3,938,000 7,089,000 7,025,000

(4,771,000) (8,332,000} (8,020,000)

as follows:
Stonegate
Farmers
Limited
2023
Group £
Present value of defined benefit obligations 3,151,000
Fair value of plan assets (3,561,000)
Deficit in scheme {410,000)
Restriction on scheme assets 440,000

(833,000) (1,243,000) (995,000)

833,000 1,243,000 995,000

Total liability recognised -

The company had no post employment benefits at 30 September 2023 or 2 October 2022.

Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations

Liabilities at 2 QOctober 2022
Benefits paid

Actuarial gains and losses
Interest cost

At 30 September 2023

Stonegate Thames Group Total

Farmers Valley
Limited Eggs
Limited

2023 2023 2023

£ £

2,987,000 4,038,000 7,025,000
(136,000)  (339,000) (475,000)
132,000 21,000 153,000
168,000 218,000 386,000

3,151,000 3,938,000 7,089,000

The defined benefit obligations arise from plans which are wholly or partly funded.
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Stonegate Thames Group Total

Farmers Valley
Limited Eggs
Limited
2023 2023 2023
Movements in the fair value of plan assets £ £ £
Fair value of assets at 2 October 2022 3,338,000 4,682,000 8,020,000
Interest income 188,000 253,000 441,000
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest) 116,000 13,000 129,000
Benefits paid (136,000)  (339,000) (475,000}
Contributions by the employer §5,000 162,000 217.000
At 30 September 2023 3,561,000 4,771,000 8,332,000

Fair value of plen assets at the raporting period end
Stonegate Thames Group Total Group Total

Farmers Valley

Limited Eggs

Limited
2023 2023 2023 2022
£ £ £ £
Equities 2,136,600 2,385500 4,522100 4,250,160
Diversified growth funds 569,760 811,070 1,380,830 1,383,400
Fixed interest 605,370 906,490 1,511,860 1,310,080
Property 142,440 524,810 667,250 775,560
Cash 106,830 143,130 249,960 320,800

3,561,000 4,771,000 8,332,000 8,020,000

The pension plan assets do not include ordinary shares issued by the sponsoring employer nor do they
include property occupied by the sponsoring employer.

29 Share capital

Group and company 2023 2022 2023 2022
Ordinary share capital Number Number £ £
Issued and fully paid

A Ordinary shares of £1 each 50 50 50 50
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30 Financial commiitments, guarantees and contingent liabilities

3

a2

33

The group is parly to a cross guarantee in favour of HSBC UK Bank plc. As part of the cross composite
guarantee between the companies under common control, a mortgage debenture exists which provides
HSBC UK Bank plc with charges over all company assets, as security against its exposure to debt, The
total liability under this guarantee across these companies at 2 October 2021 was £8,151,926. On 12
October 2021 the total liability under this guarantee across these companies was limited to £1,400,000.

The company is party to a cross guarantee in favour of HSBC UK Bank plc. As part of the cross
composite guarantee between the group companies, an unlimited multilateral guarantee exists which
provides HSBC UK Bank plc with charges over all company assets, as security against its exposure to
debt. The total liability under this guarantee across these companies is £6,241,320 (2022: £11,743,300).

The company is party to a cross guarantee in favour of HSBC Eguipment Finance (UK) Limited in
relation to the financing arrangements for various assets in group companies. The total liability under this
guarantee across these companies is £5,758,656 (2022: £5,037,757).

Operating lease commitments

Lessee
At the reporting end date the group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating ieases, which fall due as follows:

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
£ £ £ £
Within one year 2,337,840 2,467,362 - -
Between two and five years 8,596,582 8,268,092 - -
In over five years 10,343,266 12,559,357 - -

21,277,488 23,294,811 - -

Capital commitments

Amounts contracted for but not provided in the financial statements:

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
£ £ £ £
Acquisition of tangibie fixed assets 36,837 322,345 - -

Related party transactions

Remuneration of key management personnel
The group has taken the exemption from disclosing key management personne! remuneration as the
key management personne! is considered to be the director.

Other information
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33 Related party transactions {Continued)

Included within other gperating income is £100,000 (2022; £299,719) of management charges raised to
a company with a commaon director,

During the year the group made purchases of £2,428,510 (2022: £2,132,132) from companies with a
commaon director. At the year end a total of £1,273,447 (2022: £1,143,400) was due from companies with
a common director, and a total of £nil (2022: £341,404) was due to companies with a common director.

As permitted by FRS 102 Section 33, transactions entered into between two or more members of the

group are not disclosed, provided that any subsidiary which is a party to the transaction is wholly owned
by such a member.

34 Directors' transactions

Dividends totalling £152,400 (2022 - £152,400) were paid in the year in respect of shares held by the
company's director.

Advances or credits have heen granted by the group to its director as follows:

The maximum amount owed to the company during the year was £78,593.

Description Y Opening Amounts Interest Amounts Closing
Rate balance advanced charged repaid balance
£ £ £ £ £
Loan 2.00 (10,771) 183,774 561 (152,400} (8,836)
(10,771) 153,774 561 (152,400) (8,838)

35 Controlling party

The ultimate controlling party is Mr A D Gett, who owns the entire share capital of the company.
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36 Cash generated from/{absorbed by) group operations

37

Profit for the year after tax

Adjustments for:

Taxation charged

Finance costs

Investment income

Loss/{gain) on disposal of tangible fixed assets
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets
Depreciation and impairment of tangible fixed assets
Other gains and losses

Pension scheme non-cash movement

Movements in working capital:
Increase in stocks

Increase in debtors

Increase in creditors

Cash generated from/{absorhed by) operations

Analysis of changes in net debt -~ group
2 Cctober
2022

£

Cash at bank and in hand
Borrowings excluding overdrafts
Obligations under finance leases

353,576
(11,743,300)
(5,037.757)

(16,427,481)

2023 2022

£ £

3,225,730 503,036

1,160,998 85,866

482,151 416,296

(56,187) {087)

2,679 (8,000)

90,120 90,120

3,020,406 1,735,438

6,540 -

{217,000) (217,000)

(155,790} (831,935)

(3,056,489) {9,566,322}

4,290,320 2,336,035

8,773,478 (5,457,433)

Cash flows New finance 30
leases September

2023

£ £ £
156,954 - 510,530
5,501,980 - (6,241,320)
1,399,224 (2,120,123) (5,758,656)
7,058,158 (2,120,123) (11,489 4486)
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